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       1                         P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript follows in sequence from

       3       Volume 3.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We just finished with

       5       Mr. Rendell.  And so, Mr. Jaeger, unless I'm reading

       6       this incorrectly, we're going to OPC's witness.

       7                 THE COURT:  That's correct, Chairman.

       8       Mr. Woodcock is listed as the first one, and he has been

       9       stipulated.  He had ten exhibits, also.  I think we

      10       could insert Mr. Woodcock's testimony into the record as

      11       though read at this time.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's go ahead and enter Mr.

      13       Woodcock's testimony into the record as though read.

      14

      15
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      20
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      24

      25
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       1                 MR. JAEGER:  And then he also had ten

       2       exhibits, 71 through 80.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Didn't we already enter

       4       those?

       5                 MR. JAEGER:  And those have been stipulated

       6       and entered.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       8                 MR. JAEGER:  And then that would bring us to

       9       the next witness, which is Ms. Vandiver.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  OPC.

      11                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Chairman, before we start

      12       with Ms. Vandiver, I have Witness Kimberly Dismukes, who

      13       has come in from Baton Rouge, Louisiana.  I would ask,

      14       if I might, that tomorrow if we could take her out of

      15       order to try and get her finished, so she would not have

      16       to come back next week on the 7th and 8th, and just put

      17       her in order before Mr. Poucher.  And she doesn't have

      18       any rebuttal testimony.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Would you like to take her

      20       now?

      21                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I mean, I'm prepared to take

      22       her now.  I think Mr. May had an issue with that.

      23                 MR. MAY:  Commissioner, we had worked until

      24       the wee hours of the morning preparing for Mr. Poucher's

      25       cross-examination.  And we're, quite frankly, not
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       1       prepared to cross-examine Ms. Dismukes today.  We can

       2       work very diligently tonight and be prepared to take her

       3       tomorrow to accommodate her schedule.  But any other

       4       time, I would, but it's a document-intensive case and --

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's okay.  We'll take her

       6       up after the -- I believe we have a time-certain person

       7       tomorrow morning.

       8                 MR. JAEGER:  Chairman, we have the two DEP

       9       witnesses at 9:30.  They should be fairly short.  I

      10       think we had the more controversial ones today, and they

      11       only went about an hour.  I think Mr. Richards has

      12       something with Mr. Mariano.  He is scheduled to go

      13       tomorrow, but I think he is also not considered to be a

      14       long witness.  And then we have the other two DEP

      15       witnesses that are showing up at 10:45, and those

      16       shouldn't be very long.  So I think we could probably

      17       get those five, the DEP and Mariano in, and it shouldn't

      18       take that long, and that would give us the rest of the

      19       day for Ms. Dismukes, if you wanted to do that.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We'll take her up

      21       tomorrow.  We have to work around the ones that we have

      22       for a time certain and, hopefully, we can get her done

      23       before about 4:30 or so tomorrow.

      24                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  The Citizens appreciate

      25       that.
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       1                 MR. MAY:  And, Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to

       2       follow up.  As I explained to Ms. Christensen, any other

       3       time I would have been accommodating, but I just do not

       4       have the documents in line where it would be efficient

       5       for me to try to cross-examine her today.  And I

       6       apologize to Ms. Dismukes.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's all right.

       8                 Mr. Richards.

       9                 MR. RICHARDS:  Yes.  You have graciously

      10       agreed to allow Commissioner Mariano to come tomorrow,

      11       and I was just trying to nail down a time if we could.

      12       We have the DEP witnesses in the morning, and if

      13       possible we could say he has to be here at 11:00 or

      14       12:00 o'clock, that would help him greatly.  And I doubt

      15       that he will be more than 15 or 20 minutes at the most.

      16       So I can let him know today when he needs to be here, I

      17       would appreciate it.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We didn't have a time set

      19       for him.  We just said that he was going to be here

      20       tomorrow.

      21                 MR. RICHARDS:  Right.  If we can do him in the

      22       late morning, that would leave the afternoon.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I would just say let's just

      24       get him early morning, 9:30 or 10:00 o'clock and,

      25       hopefully, we can get all those people out of the way
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       1       and then get Ms. Dismukes taken care of.

       2                 MR. RICHARDS:  Okay.  Thank you.  All right.

       3       I'll tell him 10:00 o'clock, if that's all right.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       5                           DENISE VANDIVER

       6       was called as a witness on behalf of the Citizens of the

       7       State of Florida, and having been duly sworn, testified

       8       as follows:

       9                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      10       BY MS. CHRISTENSEN:

      11            Q.   Can you please state your name and business

      12       address for the record?

      13            A.   Yes.  My name is Denise Vandiver.  My address

      14       is 111 West Madison Street, Room 812, Tallahassee,

      15       Florida.

      16            Q.   And did you cause to be filed Prefiled Direct

      17       Testimony consisting of 27 pages in this docket?

      18            A.   Yes, I did.

      19            Q.   And do you have any corrections to your

      20       testimony?

      21            A.   No, I don't.

      22            Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

      23       today, would your answers be the same?

      24            A.   Yes, they would.

      25                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I would ask to have
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       1       Ms. Vandiver's Prefiled Direct Testimony entered into

       2       the record as though read.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, let's enter Ms. --

       4       pronounce your last name again.

       5                 THE WITNESS:  Vandiver.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  -- Vandiver's testimony into

       7       the record as if read.

       8

       9
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       1       BY MS. CHRISTENSEN:

       2            Q.   And I would also ask Ms. Vandiver, did you

       3       have Exhibits DNV-1 through DNV-8 attached to your

       4       Prefiled Direct Exhibits?

       5            A.   Yes, I did.

       6            Q.   Do you have any corrections to make to any of

       7       your exhibits?

       8            A.   No, I don't.

       9                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Thank you.  I would ask that

      10       the witness be allowed to summarize her testimony.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      12                 THE WITNESS:  Good morning, Chairman and

      13       Commissioners.  I am providing testimony on three

      14       issues:  Quality of service, salaries and wages, and

      15       rate case expense.  As you have heard, Aqua was required

      16       in the last rate case to enter into a monitoring plan

      17       because of the Commission's concerns with Aqua's

      18       customer service.  Aqua filed its required or final

      19       report on the monitoring program on February 28th of

      20       this year.  My testimony includes the Citizens' response

      21       to this report.

      22                 Our response addresses many of the reasons why

      23       the Citizens believe that the quality of service is

      24       unsatisfactory.  This report is largely based on the

      25       customer comments at the customer meetings held last
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       1       year in this docket.  The customers were very compelling

       2       in their assessment of the quality of service provided

       3       by Aqua.  These customers had so many complaints.  These

       4       complaints were not very different than the testimony at

       5       the service hearings which you, Commissioners, attended

       6       this year.

       7                 There were reports of water that could not be

       8       used for drinking, bathing, or other uses.  There were

       9       reports of poor customer service that included poor

      10       billing practices and rude or nonresponsive customer

      11       service representatives.  These customers took time out

      12       of their busy lives to attend and provide comments.

      13       They were sincere and reported problems that they live

      14       with every day of the year.  These customers deserve a

      15       better quality of service.

      16                 My second issue addresses salaries and wages.

      17       I am testifying that the pro forma salary increases

      18       requested in the MFRs be removed.  As the Commission

      19       stated in its PAA order, in light of the economic

      20       climate in Florida and throughout the United States, no

      21       increase in salaries is reasonable.  The customers

      22       testified repeatedly that while the utility continues to

      23       increase their rates, the customers' incomes are not

      24       increasing.  In addition, the CPI for 2010 over 2009 was

      25       less than 2 percent.
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       1                 Customers testified to the difficulty of

       2       paying their current bills, much less any increases.

       3       Customers should not be forced to pay for increased

       4       salaries at a time when they are suffering through these

       5       difficult economic times.  My recommended adjustment is

       6       $220,410 to salaries and wages and $16,861 for the

       7       related payroll taxes.

       8                 My last issue is rate case expense.  I

       9       reviewed the requested rate case expense, and I

      10       recommend that it is inflated with costs that the

      11       utility customers should not have to bear.  I have

      12       numerous issues with items that the utility has put into

      13       its request.  Customers should only be required to bear

      14       the burden of those costs that are sufficiently

      15       documented and are reasonable and necessary in

      16       processing the rate case.

      17                 I agree that a company has the right to make

      18       business decisions.  However, when those business

      19       decisions are advantageous only to the company and add

      20       additional cost to the customers, I believe that these

      21       costs should be borne by the shareholders and not the

      22       customers.

      23                 Two of these business decisions in particular

      24       are the fact that Aqua has its offices in Pennsylvania,

      25       and the fact that its attorneys fees are higher than the
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       1       average fees in the State of Florida.  The Commission

       2       has a rule that allows a company to maintain its books

       3       and records out of state, but it requires that the

       4       company absorb the cost of the Commission staff going

       5       out of state to review those records.  The rule does not

       6       allow those costs to be passed through to the customers.

       7       I recommend that for the same reasoning any additional

       8       rate case expense due to the company's location in

       9       Pennsylvania should not be allowed to be recovered from

      10       customers.  Only reasonable costs should be allowed in

      11       rate case expense.

      12                 I am also recommending that the Commission

      13       look closely at the legal fees charged to rate case

      14       expense.  It is true that the utility should be allowed

      15       to recover rate case expense for competent counsel in

      16       processing the rate case, and I agree that the company

      17       certainly does so.  However, I believe that when a

      18       company chooses to go over and above that it should bear

      19       some of the cost for that decision.

      20                 This is a regulated company and a monopoly

      21       environment.  If the Commission does not look closely at

      22       the individual costs that a company pays, there is no

      23       incentive for a company to incur reasonable and prudent

      24       costs.  The Commission has an important role in

      25       balancing the interests of the utilities and the
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       1       customers.  The Commission takes the place of the

       2       competitive marketplace and must provide incentives for

       3       the utility to make the best decisions for the utility

       4       as well as the customers.  Otherwise, the company will

       5       know that whatever it pays out will automatically be

       6       passed on to customers.

       7                 I have several other adjustments to rate case

       8       expense that are detailed in my testimony.  My adjusted

       9       total rate case expense is $809,000, which is 139,000

      10       higher than the MFRs, but 440,000 lower than the revised

      11       estimate provided by the utility.

      12                 In summary, my three points are that the

      13       customers deserve recognition that their quality of

      14       service is unsatisfactory, the salary and wage increases

      15       should be removed from O&M expenses, and rate case

      16       expense should be carefully examined to remove

      17       unsupported and unreasonable costs that the customers

      18       should not have to pay.  Thank you.

      19                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I tender the witness for

      20       cross-examination.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Mr. May.

      22                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      23       BY MR. MAY:

      24            Q.   Good afternoon, Ms. Vandiver.

      25            A.   Good afternoon.

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       665

       1            Q.   Good to see you, again.

       2                 MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, to move things along,

       3       we have distributed two composite exhibits.  The first

       4       is titled, "The Master Demonstrative Exhibits of AUF,"

       5       and this is an exhibit that contains a lot of the

       6       orders, a lot of the rules, a lot of the case law that

       7       we will be questioning the OPC witnesses throughout the

       8       course of the afternoon and into tomorrow when we talk

       9       to Ms. Dismukes.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. May, I hate to interrupt

      11       you.  Ms. Helton, I'm looking at the script here and it

      12       has me going to Aqua first.  Should this also go to the

      13       intervenors first and then back to Aqua?

      14                 MS. HELTON:  If I were sitting in your chair,

      15       that is how I would do it, Mr. Chairman.  I would go to

      16       the intervenors first and then to Aqua.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do any of the intervenors

      18       have any questions of this witness?

      19                 MR. RICHARDS:  Pasco has no questions.

      20                 MR. CURTIN:  I just have a few.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      22                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      23       BY MR. CURTIN:

      24            Q.   Ma'am, you were here yesterday for the

      25       testimony where it was talked about how many people
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       1       testified at the prior rate hearing in 2009, how many

       2       customers testified at Arredondo Farms?

       3            A.   In the last rate case?

       4            Q.   Yes.

       5            A.   Yes, I was here.

       6            Q.   And I believe it was nine testified and 11

       7       were in attendance --

       8            A.   Right.

       9            Q.   -- at the rate hearing.  And in the hearing

      10       for Arredondo Farms in this case 40 people testified?

      11            A.   Yes.

      12            Q.   Do you have a calculator?  Do you know how

      13       much percentage that is more testified?

      14            A.   I would say that is about four times as many.

      15            Q.   So over 400 percent more people testified?

      16            A.   Yes.

      17                 MR. CURTIN:  No further questions.

      18                 MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Madam Counsel, I mean

      20       Attorney General.

      21                 MS. BRADLEY:  No questions.

      22                 MR. MAY:  May I inquire?  In the prehearing

      23       order there was a prohibition on friendly

      24       cross-examination, and I thought that that was an order

      25       that no one has protested or objected to, and I thought
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       1       that that was the rules that we were going to be

       2       following.

       3                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Would you like to jump in?

       4                 MS. BRADLEY:  I'm shocked at this.  I think

       5       our prehearing officer can tell you we did object to the

       6       friendly cross language, and pointed out the fact that

       7       it's not covered by any rules, or statutes, or any case

       8       law.  And we did, in fact, object and several of the

       9       other parties joined that objection.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Was there a determination

      11       made in the prehearing if we were going to allow

      12       friendly cross or not?

      13                 MS. BRADLEY:  No, sir.  They said they would

      14       let it be decided when it came up, as they did in the

      15       last rate case.

      16                 MR. MAY:  I'm quoting -- excuse me.  May I

      17       respond?

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Helton, is this my

      19       determination if we are going to allow friendly cross?

      20                 MS. HELTON:  Mr. Chairman, the prehearing

      21       order I do believe states that the parties shall avoid

      22       duplicative or repetitious cross-examination.  Friendly

      23       cross will not be allowed.

      24                 Ms. Bradley and I over the last several years

      25       have been in disagreement with respect to whether the
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       1       concept of friendly cross is even a legally recognized

       2       concept and whether it is appropriate or inappropriate

       3       for the Commission to allow friendly cross.  She doesn't

       4       believe that our prohibition on friendly cross is

       5       recognized in the law.  I disagree wholeheartedly.  I

       6       have -- if you were to look at prior transcripts where I

       7       have advised the Commission, you will see where I have

       8       read excerpts from Judge Padovano's treatise on civil

       9       practice -- he is a judge at the First DCA -- where I

      10       believe that he states clearly that friendly cross

      11       should -- his description of the testimony equates to

      12       friendly cross, and that it should not be allowed.

      13                 Professor Chuck Ehrhardt, who taught me

      14       evidence, who was instrumental in creating the Florida

      15       Evidence Code and who also has a treatise on Florida

      16       evidence, I believe that he also has a section that

      17       states, in effect, that friendly cross should not be

      18       allowed.  I don't believe that it is contemplated by

      19       Chapter 120, which are the statutes that govern these

      20       proceedings.

      21                 Now, all that being said, I think that you

      22       have a lot of discretion whether to allow certain, you

      23       know, cross-examination testimony or not.  I have --

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So you are my attorney.

      25                 MS. HELTON:  Yes, sir.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes or no, do I have the

       2       discretion to determine friendly cross or not?

       3                 MS. HELTON:  You do.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Let's scratch that

       5       last question and that response.

       6                 Mr. May.

       7                 MS. BRADLEY:  Mr. Chairman, I say that Mr. May

       8       object, because Mr. May's objection was untimely, and

       9       since that was something that was going to be ruled on

      10       when it was raised, it was not decided prior to the

      11       hearing, and he allowed counsel to go ahead and ask the

      12       question and the witness to answer it.  I think it is

      13       part of the record and cannot be retroactively struck.

      14                 MR. CURTIN:  If I may, Chairman, since it is

      15       my question.  I will repeat what the Attorney General

      16       has just said, but, also, I think it would take away our

      17       due process rights not to have the answer to be able to

      18       question a witness about relevant information.  At the

      19       very least I should be able to rephrase my question and

      20       continue with that questioning now.  Because I stopped

      21       my questioning because there was no objection to it, and

      22       the objection came after I stopped, after I said I had

      23       no other questions, and then an objection came up.

      24                 So, one, the objection was untimely, and so

      25       the testimony should stay.  And if it doesn't, I at
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       1       least have the right to continue my cross-examination

       2       and continue questioning.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I agreed with the objection,

       4       and I struck the question and the response.

       5                 Mr. May.

       6                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       7       BY MR. MAY:

       8            Q.   Ms. Vandiver, I had previously identified two

       9       exhibits, two composite exhibits, a master demonstrative

      10       exhibit.  Do you have that?

      11            A.   Yes, I do.

      12            Q.   And then there is another composite exhibit

      13       entitled Composite Exhibit, April 2nd, 2008, and

      14       September 18th, 2008, letters with attachments.  Do you

      15       have that, as well?

      16            A.   I don't believe I do.

      17                 MR. CURTIN:  Mr. Chairman, I hate to interrupt

      18       this, but I just think for appellate reasons I have to

      19       ask to at least proffer my questions that I wanted to

      20       ask this witness.  I am sorry to interrupt Mr. May, but

      21       I just have to put it on the record that I would at

      22       least want to -- I understand your ruling.  I understand

      23       that you won't let me ask any more questions, but for

      24       the record I would like to proffer my questions to the

      25       witness for appellate purposes.
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       1                 MS. HELTON:  I believe that when you rule to

       2       not allow cross-examination to continue and to preserve

       3       an appellate record that proffering is appropriate.

       4       However, I guess I'm a little bit confused here because

       5       I thought that the question had been asked and answered,

       6       and it is on the record, and it is preserved for

       7       appellate purposes.

       8                 MR. CURTIN:  My only response to that is

       9       I would not -- if the objection was timely made by

      10       Mr. May, I would not have stopped my cross-examination

      11       and I would have rephrased my question at that time.  So

      12       that is my objection.

      13                 The question was asked.  The question was

      14       answered.  I stopped my cross-examination, said I had no

      15       further questions.  Then Mr. May made an objection.  So

      16       I didn't have a chance to rephrase my question if the

      17       objection had been made timely.  So either the question

      18       and answer should not be stricken, or I should be able

      19       to continue my cross, or I should at least be able to

      20       proffer my questions of how I would have continued my

      21       cross.

      22                 MR. MAY:  May I say one thing?  I was acting

      23       in good faith under the specific directions of the

      24       Prehearing Officer's Order Number PSC-11-0544, which

      25       says, "Further, friendly cross-examination will not be
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       1       allowed.  Cross-examination shall be limited to

       2       witnesses whose testimony is adverse to the party

       3       desiring to cross-examine."  There was no reason for me

       4       to object.  The rules of the proceeding were already in

       5       place.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. May, please continue.

       7       BY MR. MAY:

       8            Q.   We are going to get there, Ms. Vandiver.  Have

       9       you been provided with a copy of the exhibit styled

      10       April 2nd, 2008, and September 18th, 2008, letters with

      11       attachments?

      12            A.   No, I have not.

      13                 MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, may we have these

      14       exhibits identified, please?

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Which one is which?  We are

      16       to Exhibit Number 311.  Do you want to mark the

      17       composite exhibit --

      18                 MR. MAY:  The master demonstrative, we would

      19       suggest that it be marked as Exhibit Number 311.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      21                 MR. MAY:  And that the composite exhibit with

      22       the two letters would be 312.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.

      24                 (Exhibit Numbers 311 and 312 marked for

      25       identification.)
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       1       BY MR. MAY:

       2            Q.   Do you have the exhibits, Ms. Vandiver?

       3            A.   I do now.

       4            Q.   Let's see if we can start over.  Thank you for

       5       your patience.  Prior to joining the Office of Public

       6       Counsel as a legislative analyst, you worked with the

       7       Commission for approximately 26 years, isn't that

       8       correct?

       9            A.   That is correct.

      10            Q.   And you served as Bureau Chief of Auditing for

      11       the Commission, correct?

      12            A.   Correct.

      13            Q.   And your responsibilities as bureau chief

      14       included setting audit standards for the bureau?

      15            A.   That's correct.

      16            Q.   And you also managed the administrative

      17       aspects of the auditing office, correct?

      18            A.   Correct.

      19            Q.   And as bureau chief, I'm assuming that you

      20       knew your staff and monitored their performance,

      21       correct?

      22            A.   I'm sorry, I didn't hear the whole question.

      23            Q.   As bureau chief, I'm assuming that you knew

      24       your staff and you monitored their performance, correct?

      25            A.   Correct.
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       1            Q.   Was Kathy Welch one of your auditors?

       2            A.   She was a supervisor that reported to me, yes.

       3            Q.   In your opinion, is Ms. Welch a good and

       4       thorough auditor?

       5            A.   A good --

       6            Q.   A good and thorough auditor?

       7            A.   Oh, yes.

       8            Q.   And as bureau chief you supervised the audit

       9       of the Commission, correct?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   You actually supervised the audit of AUF's

      12       last rate case, correct?

      13            A.   Correct.

      14            Q.   I would like to turn your attention to a

      15       document that we have identified as Exhibit 312, and

      16       that includes a letter from you to Aqua dated April 2nd,

      17       2008, and a memorandum from you dated September 18,

      18       2008.  You and I discussed these documents at your

      19       deposition, correct?

      20            A.   Correct.

      21            Q.   And you're familiar with these documents, are

      22       you not?

      23            A.   Yes, I am.

      24            Q.   And your April 2nd, 2008, letter advises Aqua

      25       that your staff would be conducting an audit of their
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       1       affiliate transactions for the test year, correct?

       2            A.   Correct.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And that final audit is attached to

       4       your September 18, 2008, memorandum, correct?

       5            A.   Yes, it is.  What ended up happening in this

       6       case was we -- as I went back and looked at what had

       7       happened and read the documents I had in the office, we

       8       initiated an affiliate transaction audit and intended to

       9       complete that before we started the MFR audit.  That did

      10       not happen, so the two were rolled into one, and one

      11       audit report was issued for the MFRs as well as the

      12       affiliate transactions.

      13            Q.   Okay.  Thank you for that clarification.  And

      14       the Commission addressed your staff's audit in its final

      15       order in AUF's last rate case, correct?

      16            A.   Correct.

      17            Q.   Can you turn to -- let's see, tab number --

      18       hold on one second -- Tab Number 1 of Exhibit 311.  And

      19       on the second page of that tab, can you read for the

      20       record what the order says?  It's on Page 78 of the

      21       order.

      22            A.   Sure.  While this isn't part of what I

      23       originally was planning to testify on today, I will be

      24       glad to read it.  It says, "In order to determine the

      25       reasonableness of AUF's affiliate transactions, our
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       1       staff performed an audit of the affiliate transactions

       2       for the test year 2007 in accordance with Commission

       3       audit procedures.  During the audit, our staff obtained

       4       and reviewed the total expenses allocated to the

       5       individual systems from AAI and AUF.  Total AAI and AUF

       6       allocation expenses allocated to the individual systems

       7       were traced to the general ledgers.  Our staff reviewed

       8       and recalculated the allocated expenses from AAI and

       9       AUF, and sampled allocated expenses for the proper

      10       amount period, classification, and whether the expenses

      11       were utility related, nonrecurring, unreasonable, and/or

      12       imprudent.  There was nothing found in the audit to

      13       suggest that the affiliate charges were unreasonable or

      14       imprudent."

      15            Q.   So, Ms. Vandiver, in the last case the

      16       Commission relied in part on your audit in determining

      17       the reasonableness of AUF's affiliate transactions,

      18       correct?

      19            A.   In part on my staff's audit, yes.

      20            Q.   Okay.  Now, the Commission's audit staff has

      21       conducted a similar audit of AUF in this case, correct?

      22            A.   A similar audit of affiliate transactions?

      23            Q.   Yes.

      24            A.   I believe so.

      25            Q.   And that audit in this case was handled
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       1       primarily by Ms. Kathy Welch?

       2            A.   I believe so.

       3            Q.   And she's a witness in this case, is she not?

       4            A.   I believe she was stipulated in, yes.

       5            Q.   Ms. Vandiver, you are testing (sic) as to

       6       quality of service issues, are you not?

       7            A.   Yes, I am.

       8            Q.   In that context, did you personally attend any

       9       of the customer meetings in this case?

      10            A.   No, I did not.

      11            Q.   And you didn't attend any of the customer

      12       service hearings in the case, either, did you?

      13            A.   No, I did not.

      14            Q.   You relied on reviewing the transcripts?

      15            A.   Well, I relied on reviewing the recordings of

      16       the customer meetings and creating the transcripts,

      17       which meant I listened to the recordings multiple times,

      18       and then I relied solely on the transcripts of the

      19       service hearings.

      20            Q.   Thank you.  In preparing your quality of

      21       service testimony, you did review customer complaints

      22       filed with the Public Service Commission, correct?

      23            A.   I reviewed the listing of customer complaints

      24       off the website.

      25            Q.   Can you turn to Page 7 of your testimony,
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       1       please?

       2            A.   I'm there.

       3            Q.   I'm looking on Lines 9 through 12, and that

       4       reference is in Attachment K.  Attachment K, I think,

       5       can be found in your Exhibit DNV-2, which is at Page 368

       6       of 374.

       7            A.   What page did you say, again?

       8            Q.   In the upper right-hand corner, it is

       9       Attachment K.  It is Page 368 of 374.

      10            A.   I've got it.

      11            Q.   In 2007, the year AUF filed its last case, 186

      12       complaints were filed with the Commission concerning

      13       AUF, correct?

      14            A.   Correct.

      15            Q.   Okay. And in 2010 that number dropped to 142?

      16            A.   Correct.

      17            Q.   Ms. Vandiver, that is a 24 percent decline in

      18       the number of complaints filed against AUF, is it not?

      19            A.   Correct.

      20            Q.   And on Page 7 of your testimony you state that

      21       there was a 19 percent decrease in complaints from 2009

      22       to 2010, correct?

      23            A.   Correct.

      24            Q.   Wouldn't you agree that that is an improving

      25       trend line?
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       1            A.   I wouldn't call two or three years a trend

       2       line, but I would agree that there has been some

       3       improvement for the two-year period.

       4            Q.   Thank you.  Can you turn back to Page 5 of

       5       your Direct Testimony, Ms. Vandiver?

       6            A.   I'm there.

       7            Q.   And bear with me, because we're going to

       8       replow some old ground here.  I wanted to get your

       9       deposition in the record so we could avoid this, but,

      10       you know, there were some issues there.  So we will just

      11       walk over some ground that we have covered before, so

      12       please bear with me.

      13            A.   That's fine.

      14            Q.   On Lines 5 through 7 on Page 5, you state that

      15       your analysis of information shows some concerning

      16       trends regarding maintenance and water quality, is that

      17       correct?

      18            A.   That's correct.

      19            Q.   I would like to talk with you a little bit

      20       about that.  Ms. Vandiver, are you a toxicologist?

      21            A.   No, I'm not.

      22            Q.   Have you received any training in toxicology?

      23            A.   No, I have not.

      24            Q.   Are you a hydrologist?

      25            A.   No, I'm not.
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       1            Q.   Have you received any training in hydrology?

       2            A.   No, I have not.

       3            Q.   Do you have any training in water quality

       4       analysis?

       5            A.   No, I have not.

       6            Q.   Have you ever operated a water utility?

       7            A.   No, I have not.

       8            Q.   Have you ever operated a wastewater utility?

       9            A.   No, I have not.

      10            Q.   Have you ever inspected one of AUF's water

      11       treatment systems?

      12            A.   I don't believe so, no.

      13            Q.   Have you ever inspected one of AUF's

      14       wastewater treatment systems?

      15            A.   I don't believe so, no.

      16            Q.   Have you ever visited an Aqua call center?

      17            A.   No, I have not.

      18            Q.   Do you have Mr. Poucher's testimony with you

      19       today?

      20            A.   No, I don't.

      21            Q.   Okay.  On Page 8 of your testimony, you

      22       discuss AUF's service metrics and target goals for its

      23       call centers, do you not?

      24            A.   Yes, I do.

      25            Q.   I'm going to read you what Mr. Poucher said in
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       1       his Direct Testimony on Page 29, Lines 11 through 20,

       2       and I'm going to ask you some questions about it.  He

       3       says, "For instance, prior to 2010, Aqua had a

       4       tremendous problem with bad or nonexistent meter reading

       5       and estimated bills.  Customer complaints did not solve

       6       the problem, and there was little evidence to suggest

       7       that the company even cared.  Many customers were billed

       8       month after month with estimated bills and billing

       9       problems were pervasive and excessive, however you wish

      10       to characterize it.  They solved that problem by getting

      11       rid of most of their meter readers and replacing

      12       existing meters with digital meters that could be read

      13       electronically from a passing vehicle.  Meter reading

      14       complaints because of estimated bills has declined

      15       significantly.  Those positive results are reflected in

      16       Aqua's service quality reports."

      17                 Do you agree with Mr. Poucher's testimony?

      18            A.   I'd have to look at some specific statistics

      19       to be able to agree to that.

      20            Q.   Mr. Poucher went on on Line 22 to say, "Aqua

      21       reports also show improvements in call center

      22       performance."

      23                 Do you agree with that testimony?

      24            A.   I would have to look at specific statistics to

      25       agree with that.
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       1            Q.   Let's go back to your testimony on Page 8.

       2       Isn't it correct that these are target goals that AUF

       3       has adopted for itself to ensure call center quality?

       4            A.   That's correct.

       5            Q.   Do you believe it's important for businesses

       6       to have internal performance goals to drive quality?

       7            A.   Definitely.

       8            Q.   Does OPC have target goals and quality

       9       assurance metrics for its employees?

      10            A.   No, we don't.

      11            Q.   Does the Florida Public Service Commission

      12       rules require water and wastewater utilities to have

      13       service metrics and target goals for its call centers?

      14            A.   I don't believe it does.

      15            Q.   Does the Florida Public Service Commission

      16       rules require a water and wastewater utility to have any

      17       performance goals for its company?

      18            A.   It has certain rules that the customer service

      19       representatives would have to follow, but I don't

      20       believe it sets a metric, but it goes have rules that

      21       they must follow.

      22            Q.   Let's talk about that.  You would agree, would

      23       you not, that the Commission does not have rules that

      24       would require a water and wastewater utility to adopt

      25       service quality metrics?
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       1            A.   Correct.

       2            Q.   Should a utility be financially rewarded for

       3       meeting voluntary target goals to ensure quality?

       4            A.   I don't believe so, no.

       5            Q.   Are you aware of Mr. Poucher's testimony where

       6       he's suggesting that the Commission penalize the company

       7       for failing to meet its own internal goals?

       8            A.   I believe he may have said that.

       9            Q.   If a utility could not be rewarded for meeting

      10       voluntary goals to ensure quality, but would be subject

      11       to a penalty for failure to meet those same goals, why

      12       would a utility ever adopt those goals in the first

      13       place?

      14            A.   I would think as a management tool, at a very

      15       minimum, would be a reason a company would adopt metrics

      16       on their own.  But I think if a company had any interest

      17       in providing quality customer service, you would adopt

      18       those.

      19            Q.   But, again, if the utility could not be

      20       rewarded for meeting the goals, but could only be

      21       penalized for failing to meet the goals, what incentive

      22       would there be for a utility to adopt the goals in the

      23       first instance?

      24            A.   I could not begin to tell you what Mr. Poucher

      25       meant in his testimony, but if I were going to expound

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       684

       1       on that testimony, I would say that in a case where a

       2       company occasionally missed their metrics, I don't think

       3       that would be a good recommendation to penalize them.

       4       But when you have a company who consistently provides

       5       poor quality of service, I do think it would be

       6       appropriate to penalize them, and that would be the case

       7       in Aqua's case.

       8            Q.   Let's turn to your testimony on salaries and

       9       wages.

      10            A.   Okay.

      11            Q.   You have recommended -- well, let me back up.

      12       Were you here when Mr. Rendell was questioned by some of

      13       the Commissioners regarding the performance-based

      14       increase proposed by Aqua in its MFRs?

      15            A.   Yes, I was.

      16            Q.   You're recommending eliminating that

      17       performance-based salary increase, correct?

      18            A.   Correct.

      19            Q.   And your recommendation to eliminate that

      20       performance-based salary increase is not based upon any

      21       market study that you performed, correct?

      22            A.   I did not perform a market study, no.

      23            Q.   The basis for your disallowance or your

      24       adjustment is that the ratepayers shouldn't be forced to

      25       pay for increased salaries at a time when they are
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       1       suffering through difficult economic times, correct?

       2            A.   Correct.

       3            Q.   Did you recall Ms. Christensen's opening

       4       statement about the need for the company to tighten its

       5       belt in this kind of economy?

       6            A.   I remember her saying that.

       7            Q.   Ms. Vandiver, did you compare AUF's salary

       8       expense in this rate case to AUF's salary expense in

       9       2008?

      10            A.   I might have looked at that at one point.

      11            Q.   Let's look at it again.  Can you turn to Tab 8

      12       in the demonstrative exhibit?

      13            A.   Which tab, please?

      14            Q.   Tab Number 8.

      15            A.   Okay.

      16            Q.   It's on Page 4 of the audit.  Can you read the

      17       highlighted section?  It's the second full paragraph

      18       beginning with, "For AUF, we selected"?

      19            A.   Okay.  This is an audit that was performed in

      20       the current rate case by the staff of the Commission, so

      21       this would be their words.

      22            Q.   Absolutely.

      23            A.   "For AUF, we selected time sheets for some

      24       employees and reconciled the hours through the payroll

      25       documentation.  We also traced a sample of entries from
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       1       the payroll data sheet to the ledger.  We reconciled the

       2       payroll data to the MFRs.  We also reviewed the

       3       supporting documentation for the normalizing and

       4       pro forma payroll adjustments to net operating income in

       5       the MFRs for AUF.  The Florida payroll was approximately

       6       11 percent less in the test year than in 2008."

       7            Q.   So you would agree, would you not, that AUF's

       8       payroll for the test year was around 11 percent less

       9       than AUF's payroll at the time of the last rate case?

      10            A.   Oh, I don't know.  That's what the staff

      11       auditor said.

      12            Q.   Do you disagree with that audit?

      13            A.   I don't have any way to agree or disagree at

      14       this point.

      15            Q.   Can you turn to the first page of that audit?

      16            A.   Okay.

      17            Q.   Who prepared the audit?

      18            A.   The audit manager was Kathy Welch.

      19            Q.   I think you previously said you had confidence

      20       in Ms. Welch's ability as a thorough auditor?

      21            A.   Yes, I did.

      22            Q.   Do you have any reason to doubt that this is

      23       an accurate audit?

      24            A.   I don't have any reason to doubt that it is an

      25       accurate audit.  I don't know that she looked at it the
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       1       same way I would look at it for salaries and wages,

       2       though.

       3            Q.   Let's assume for the sake of our discussion

       4       today that the audit is accurate.  Isn't an 11 percent

       5       decrease in payroll since the last rate case evidence

       6       that AUF has tightened its belt?

       7            A.   In that one area it would be evidence, if that

       8       is what they did, yes.

       9            Q.   Bear with me, Ms. Vandiver.  We're getting

      10       close to the goal line.  Let's turn your attention to

      11       your testimony regarding rate case expense.

      12            A.   Okay.

      13            Q.   On Page 19 you recommend that the Commission

      14       reduce rate case expense by imputing a reduced attorney

      15       billable hour rate of $275 per hour, correct?

      16            A.   I recommended an adjustment to the 275, not by

      17       the -- I wasn't sure if I understood the question, but

      18       from 392 to 275.

      19            Q.   Okay.  And that $275 hourly rate is based in

      20       large part upon a Florida bar survey, correct?

      21            A.   Yes, it is.

      22            Q.   Now, you and I talked about this at your

      23       deposition, and I just wanted to go through it one more

      24       time just so I'm clear.

      25            A.   Okay.
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       1            Q.   The $275 billable hour rate that you are

       2       recommending is substantially below the $400 billable

       3       hour rate that the Commission recognized in the Waste

       4       Management Services rate case in Docket Number 100104?

       5            A.   You mean the Water Management case?  I believe

       6       it was.

       7            Q.   And it's substantially below the billable hour

       8       rate recently recognized by the Commission in the Lake

       9       Utility Services rate case in Docket Number 100426-WS,

      10       correct?

      11            A.   I believe so.

      12            Q.   And you haven't spoken with the individual at

      13       the Florida Bar who put together the survey that you

      14       relied on in recommending this adjustment, have you?

      15            A.   No, I have not.

      16            Q.   So you don't know if the survey included the

      17       billable hour rate of the attorney who has a $400 hour

      18       rate that was recognized in the Water Management

      19       Services case, do you?

      20            A.   No, I do not.  I just know that the survey

      21       explains that they sent out a sample survey to a sample

      22       of their attorneys, and those people responded.  So it

      23       should have included -- a random sample would include a

      24       little bit of everybody.

      25            Q.   Do you know if the survey included the
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       1       billable hour rate of the attorney who represented Lake

       2       Utility Services, Inc. in Docket Number 100426?

       3            A.   No, I don't know.

       4            Q.   Do you know if the survey included my rate?

       5            A.   I don't know.

       6            Q.   Subject to check, would you agree it didn't?

       7            A.   Subject to check.

       8            Q.   Do you know if the survey included any of the

       9       private law firms that represent Florida's

      10       investor-owned electric utilities?

      11            A.   I don't know whether it did or didn't.

      12            Q.   Do you know if the survey includes any hourly

      13       from any private law firm that represents investor-owned

      14       telecommunications companies?

      15            A.   I don't know whether it did or didn't.

      16            Q.   And do you know whether the survey includes

      17       hourly rates from private attorneys that represent

      18       investor-owned natural gas utilities?

      19            A.   I don't know whether it did or didn't.

      20            Q.   Do you know whether the survey includes any

      21       rates from any private attorney that practices before

      22       the Florida Public Service Commission?

      23            A.   I don't know whether it did or didn't.

      24            Q.   Do you know if the survey includes any rates

      25       from any private attorney that specializes in public
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       1       utility law?

       2            A.   I would be surprised if it didn't.  If they

       3       sent out a random sample I would suspect that at least

       4       someone in there would have been selected.

       5            Q.   Would it be prudent for a utility to hire a

       6       lawyer to represent it in a fully litigated rate case

       7       before the Commission if that lawyer did not have

       8       experience in public utility rate cases?

       9            A.   Could you say that again, please?  That was

      10       too long.

      11            Q.   It was a long question.  Would it be prudent

      12       for a utility to hire a lawyer to represent it in a

      13       fully litigated rate case before the Commission if that

      14       lawyer did not have experience in public utility rate

      15       cases?

      16            A.   Probably not.  Could I add to that it would

      17       depend on the size of the utility and what they needed

      18       the expertise for.  I'm sure there have been some

      19       smaller utilities that have hired attorneys that may not

      20       have been very experienced, but it was sufficient for

      21       their needs.

      22            Q.   Thank you.  Ms. Vandiver, wouldn't you agree

      23       that the larger the volume of discovery in a rate case,

      24       the higher the rate case expense?

      25            A.   Not necessarily.

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       691

       1            Q.   Do you know the exact number of

       2       interrogatories and requests for production of documents

       3       that OPC has served on AUF in this case?

       4            A.   I don't have that with me right now.

       5            Q.   Mr. Szczygiel's testimony indicates that OPC

       6       has propounded 796 interrogatories and 299 requests for

       7       production of documents.  Would you disagree with that

       8       analysis?

       9            A.   Yes, I would.

      10            Q.   Why?

      11            A.   Because I believe he's counting subparts which

      12       I would disagree are individual requests.  I believe a

      13       lot of the subparts were an explanation of what we

      14       expected to be included.  Because if we are not

      15       specific, the company will not provide the information

      16       that we are asking for, so we put a list to make sure

      17       that it was very clear what the discovery was for.  And

      18       I believe he was counting each of those subparts as

      19       separate discovery requests, when they were not meant to

      20       be that.

      21            Q.   Do you understand that Mr. Curtin's client is

      22       suing my client in circuit court in Alachua County,

      23       Florida?

      24            A.   I don't know.

      25            Q.   You understand, though, in the Rules of Civil
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       1       Procedure that litigation is limited to

       2       30 interrogatories, including subparts, correct?

       3            A.   I am not familiar with circuit court.  I

       4       believe we had a procedural order that laid out how much

       5       discovery we could propound, and I believe we met that.

       6            Q.   While you were at the Commission, did you ever

       7       see the OPC issue that volume of discovery in a PAA

       8       water utility rate case?

       9            A.   I did not see discovery very much while I was

      10       in auditing, and it had been 16 years -- well, 18 years

      11       since I have been in water and wastewater.  So 20 years

      12       ago, no, I did not see that level of discovery.  But

      13       things have changed an awful lot in those 20 years.

      14            Q.   You were with the Commission when the

      15       Commission addressed the Florida Power and Light nuclear

      16       power plant need determination?

      17            A.   I don't know.  I was not familiar with it.

      18            Q.   Do you know how many interrogatories -- well,

      19       let me back up.  Do you know the value of that plant?

      20       It was over $10 billion, wasn't it?

      21                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Objection, relevancy.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Can you tell us what the

      23       relevancy is?

      24                 MR. MAY:  I'm trying to put the context of

      25       this discovery in this case, which is a $4.1 million
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       1       rate case, into the amount of discovery propounded by

       2       the Office of Public Counsel in a $10 billion need

       3       determination for a nuclear power plant.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'll allow the question.

       5       BY MR. MAY:

       6            Q.   Do you know how many interrogatories the

       7       Office of Public Counsel served on Florida Power and

       8       Light in that $10 billion need determination proceeding?

       9            A.   I have no idea.

      10            Q.   Subject to check, would it be less than 15?

      11            A.   Subject to check, I have no idea.  But I do

      12       understand that need determinations have very extensive

      13       filings that are extensive in their natures, and there

      14       are a lot of estimates in it, and so there may not be as

      15       much need for discovery in those cases.

      16            Q.   And you don't agree that the volume of

      17       discovery in a litigated proceeding has an impact on

      18       rate case expense?

      19            A.   I think it has an impact.  I don't think it's

      20       the driving force, necessarily.

      21            Q.   When was a PAA order issued in this case?

      22            A.   I believe it was April or May of this year.

      23            Q.   And at that time the amount of the rate case

      24       expense included in the PAA order was around $778,000?

      25            A.   That sounds about right.
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       1            Q.   When was the deadline for protesting the PAA

       2       order?

       3            A.   It was three weeks after the order was issued.

       4            Q.   Would you agree that it was around July 5th,

       5       2011?

       6            A.   That sounds about right.

       7            Q.   And which parties protested the PAA order on

       8       or before that deadline?

       9            A.   I believe the Office of Public Counsel and

      10       Mrs. Wambsgan protested it the Friday before the

      11       deadline.

      12            Q.   None of the other parties sitting here at this

      13       table protested it before that deadline, did they?

      14            A.   No.  I believe they all waited and then did

      15       cross-petitions, but they may have done that since we

      16       had already protested it.

      17            Q.   But none of the parties sitting at this table

      18       other than the OPC protested that order before the

      19       deadline, correct?

      20            A.   Correct.

      21            Q.   And Ms. Wambsgan now has withdrawn from the

      22       proceeding, correct?

      23            A.   Correct.

      24            Q.   So but for the OPC's protest, we wouldn't be

      25       sitting here today, would we?
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       1            A.   Oh, I would disagree with that.  I think if we

       2       had not protested it on Friday, someone may very well

       3       have protested it on the last day.

       4            Q.   How do you know that?

       5            A.   I don't know that.  I said I believe that they

       6       might have.

       7            Q.   Did you monitor Ms. Dismukes' deposition?

       8            A.   Yes, I did.

       9            Q.   Ms. Dismukes agreed that it was foreseeable

      10       that a protest of the PAA order would increase rate case

      11       expense.  Do you agree with that opinion?

      12            A.   I believe it's possible.

      13            Q.   Let's step up a couple thousand feet and talk

      14       in generalities.  And I have a great deal of respect for

      15       you, Ms. Vandiver.  I know you are an excellent auditor,

      16       and I really appreciate what you do for the state in

      17       your new role with the Office of Public Counsel.

      18                 During our deposition, we had a philosophical

      19       discussion, I guess, on the role that regulatory

      20       certainty plays in cost-of-service regulation.  Do you

      21       recall that?

      22            A.   Yes, I do.

      23            Q.   I want to understand your position a little

      24       better.  Under Florida regulatory law, water and

      25       wastewater utilities like Aqua have defined service
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       1       areas, isn't that correct?

       2            A.   That's correct.

       3            Q.   And the same is true for an electric and gas

       4       utility, correct?

       5            A.   I believe that's correct.

       6            Q.   And within that defined service area, a water

       7       utility has an obligation to serve its customers,

       8       correct?

       9            A.   That's correct.

      10            Q.   And in order to fulfill that obligation to

      11       serve, the utility at times will have to make

      12       substantial capital investments, correct?

      13            A.   Correct.

      14            Q.   Just so I don't misquote you, do you have your

      15       deposition with you?  I'm just going to --

      16            A.   Yes, I do.

      17            Q.   Okay.  Just so you can track, I don't want to

      18       repeat what we talked about, but I want you to keep me

      19       honest if I get -- if I don't correctly summarize what

      20       you talked about.  I'm looking at Pages 47 and 49 of

      21       your deposition.

      22            A.   I'm there.

      23            Q.   Okay.  Now, at your deposition you explained

      24       the concept of regulatory certainty in two progressions.

      25       First, you stated that because the Commission plays a
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       1       role in setting a utility's rates as a substitute for

       2       competitive markets, the utility needs to know what to

       3       expect from that rate-setting process.  You went on to

       4       explain that it's important for a utility to know what

       5       to expect so that it can make prudent decisions in

       6       investing capital plant and incurring expenses.  Is that

       7       a fair characterization of your definition of regulatory

       8       certainty?

       9            A.   That's a fair characterization of what I said,

      10       yes.

      11            Q.   Now, Ms. Vandiver, you are familiar with the

      12       concept of regulatory precedent, aren't you?

      13            A.   Yes, I am.

      14            Q.   And how would you describes that?

      15            A.   I believe regulatory precedent is when a

      16       regulatory body has made a decision in the past, and

      17       that is used to guide their decisions in the future

      18       until there is evidence put on to change that decision.

      19            Q.   You would agree, wouldn't you, that in order

      20       to provide an element of regulatory certainty, it's

      21       important for the Commission to follow precedent?

      22            A.   I believe that it's important for them to use

      23       that in making their decision.  I don't think that the

      24       Commission is always bound to do exactly what was done

      25       by a prior Commission.
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       1            Q.   If one wanted to find out about the

       2       Commission's regulatory precedent, one would typically

       3       look to published orders and court cases, is that

       4       correct?

       5            A.   Correct.

       6            Q.   Let me shift back over to rate case expense

       7       for a moment.  I want to talk about your recommended

       8       adjustment for the in-house employees of Aqua,

       9       recovering their expense in the rate case.

      10                 I think you recommend removal of approximately

      11       $130,000 in rate case expense incurred by Aqua's

      12       in-house rate department, do you not?

      13            A.   That sounds about right.

      14            Q.   And you're familiar with the Commission's

      15       decision on rate case expense in Aqua's last rate case,

      16       correct?

      17            A.   Correct.

      18            Q.   Are you aware that the Commission allowed

      19       Aqua's in-house rate department employees to be

      20       recovered in rate case expense?

      21            A.   Yes, I am.

      22            Q.   And at your deposition you acknowledged that

      23       the Commission recently allowed the recovery of in-house

      24       employees in rate case expense in the Lake Utility

      25       Services, Inc. rate case, correct?
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       1            A.   I did.  But at the last Agenda Conference the

       2       Commission changed their opinion and removed that from

       3       the Eagle Ridge rate case, which was the sister company

       4       of that group.

       5            Q.   But in the Lake Utilities Services, Inc. case

       6       it allowed the in-house employees to be recovered in

       7       rate case expense, correct?

       8            A.   Correct, and then they removed it in the next

       9       case.

      10            Q.   Now, if the Commission disallowed in-house

      11       employees to be included in rate case expense in this

      12       case, wouldn't that be a departure from precedent?

      13            A.   It would be a departure from what they did in

      14       the last case, yes.

      15                 MR. MAY:  Ms. Vandiver, that's all the

      16       questions I have.  Thank you so much.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff.

      19                 MR. HARRIS:  Thank you, Chairman.

      20                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      21       BY MR. HARRIS:

      22            Q.   Ms. Vandiver, I have a couple of questions in

      23       some various areas, and I'll identify them first.  The

      24       first one I wanted to talk to you about is this quality

      25       of service.  If you could refer to your Direct
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       1       Testimony, Page 5.

       2            A.   Okay.

       3            Q.   And I believe you discuss a quality of service

       4       monitoring report, is that correct?

       5            A.   Correct.

       6            Q.   And I believe you state that the Citizens

       7       concluded that AUF has not improved its quality of

       8       service as perceived by their customers, is that

       9       correct?

      10            A.   Correct.

      11            Q.   Ms. Vandiver, how much weight do you believe a

      12       customer's perception of quality of service holds in

      13       comparison to quality of service metrics and statistics?

      14            A.   Considering that the Citizens are our client,

      15       I would believe that they should be granted quite a bit

      16       of weight in their opinions.  I believe that they are

      17       the ones that are living and dealing with the quality of

      18       the product and the customer service on a daily basis

      19       and should be the best witnesses as to what is being

      20       provided.

      21                 I do understand that there are other

      22       considerations and that the metrics could certainly play

      23       an important part in evaluating the service.  Depending

      24       on how the metrics are set, and whether they adequately

      25       measure the service is an issue that would have to be
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       1       looked at pretty closely.

       2            Q.   Ms. Vandiver, do you recall that during your

       3       deposition we had a brief discussion about a weighing

       4       between metrics and the customers' perceptions?

       5            A.   Correct.

       6            Q.   And do you agree that we agreed that perhaps a

       7       50/50 weighting might be appropriate?

       8            A.   I believe we talked about that, yes.

       9            Q.   Did you agree that 50/50 weighting may be

      10       appropriate?

      11            A.   At this point I think that sounds about right.

      12       I don't have any anything better to offer at this time.

      13            Q.   Okay.  And then going back to your Direct

      14       Testimony on Page 5, starting with Line 9, could you

      15       read your testimony on Lines 9 through 11?

      16            A.   "I believe that the quality of service is

      17       unsatisfactory and that additional quality of service

      18       monitoring for this utility is warranted."

      19            Q.   And that continues to be your testimony today?

      20            A.   Yes, it is.

      21            Q.   Could you describe -- and I believe we talked

      22       about this again a little bit at your deposition, but

      23       could you describe for me any additional quality of

      24       service monitoring that you believe is needed?  That

      25       would specifically include a service issue that should
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       1       be monitored, what types of data reports AUF should be

       2       required to provide, and how many additional months of

       3       monitoring you believe should be required?

       4            A.   I haven't really put together a monitoring

       5       plan of my own.  I do believe that if the Commission

       6       were to enter into a monitoring plan, it would need to

       7       develop some of the metrics, if you wanted to call it

       8       that, on their own instead of necessarily using what the

       9       company has set up, unless the company has some that

      10       meets what the Commission is interested in.

      11                 I think the Commission should or the staff

      12       should be looking at the actual DEP violations and the

      13       frequency of noncompliance, whether it's a consent order

      14       or not.  I think there have been numerous occasions

      15       where the company has been in violation of quality

      16       standards, but they have not been written up, so I think

      17       that would have to be an important part of the

      18       monitoring program.

      19                 I think that there are several issues with the

      20       customer service representatives and the number of

      21       back-billing.  I don't believe you can just look at the

      22       total bills over a year.  I think you would need to look

      23       at how many customers are being back-billed at a

      24       particular time and why there is recurring issues with

      25       back-billing.  I don't disagree that there is nothing --
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       1       that there is something wrong with back billing.  Back

       2       billing is appropriate when it is needed, but it appears

       3       that it is a very big problem in this case.  It

       4       shouldn't be that often as they are doing it.

       5                 I believe that there are still people

       6       complaining about the customer service representatives

       7       not being -- that are being plain rude to the customers.

       8       I know that the company has testified that they monitor

       9       that, but I don't understand why the customers are still

      10       complaining if it's not happening.  So I believe that is

      11       an issue.

      12                 I believe that the company has testified

      13       regarding the electronic weight queue, or something like

      14       that, is being monitored.  But if customers are asking

      15       to speak to a supervisor, even in the late late-filed

      16       exhibit the first step when a customer asks to speak to

      17       a supervisor they are tried to be talked out of it is

      18       basically what I read in the late-filed exhibit.

      19                 I think if customers aren't allowed to talk to

      20       a supervisor they are not going to reach that metric.

      21       So I think there are certain areas we need to improve

      22       what the Commission is monitoring so that we are really

      23       looking at what's bothering the customers instead of

      24       whether the company is meeting their own metrics.

      25            Q.   But other than those areas that you believe we
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       1       should look at, you don't have a specific plan that you

       2       can present today, is that correct?

       3            A.   Not at this time, no.

       4            Q.   Okay.  Then regarding the improvement of

       5       quality of service, you know, metrics or performance, is

       6       it correct that you don't have at this point a specific

       7       percentage or measurement in mind that would indicate to

       8       you that the quality of service is satisfactory?

       9            A.   I'm sorry, could you say that again?

      10            Q.   Sure.  Regarding the -- you know, we all want

      11       the improvement in quality of service, and my question

      12       to you is is it true that at this time you don't have a

      13       specific number, or percentage, or metric that you would

      14       say this target specifically says that they have

      15       improved their quality of service?

      16            A.   Well, I don't think we're looking at whether

      17       they improve their quality of service, I think we're

      18       looking at over the last two years is their quality of

      19       service satisfactory or during the test year.  I'm not

      20       real sure how the issue is worded, but has their quality

      21       of service been satisfactory, not whether it has

      22       improved from the last rate case.  If it was marginal in

      23       the last case it could still improve but still not be

      24       what I would consider satisfactory.

      25            Q.   Right here today, can you tell me what facts
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       1       you would -- what you would believe is an acceptable

       2       level of improvement today?

       3            A.   I guess I'm not -- I guess we're looking at it

       4       differently.  I'm not looking at improvement.  I'm

       5       looking at them being where they are supposed to be, not

       6       violating the water quality standards, the wastewater

       7       quality standards, providing quality customer service to

       8       the customers.  So I guess -- I haven't set those

       9       numbers.  I would say you set a threshold for the

      10       standards.  How many standards are they violating in a

      11       one-month period or a six-month period.  How many back

      12       bills do they have per system each month, things like

      13       that.  But I don't have those numbers today, no.

      14            Q.   And we don't have those standards or

      15       thresholds today, is that correct?

      16            A.   Correct.

      17            Q.   Thank you.  I'm referring to Page 8 of your

      18       Direct Testimony, and I believe we discussed this at

      19       your deposition.  Regarding the AUF call center

      20       benchmarks, have you done any analysis to determine the

      21       actual number of customers or accounts that are affected

      22       when AUF does not meet its percentage targeted

      23       benchmarks?

      24            A.   I did on a few of these.  You mean like if it

      25       said -- if their benchmark said .1 percent, how many
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       1       customers did that mean?

       2            Q.   Correct.

       3            A.   I did.  I don't have that me at this point.

       4            Q.   Hold on for a second, please.  Okay.  And I

       5       have one last area on quality of service, and I believe,

       6       again, we discussed this during your deposition.  I

       7       think it is on Page 102, and we had a bit of a

       8       discussion about the concept of the quality of service

       9       monitoring program versus a fine.  And I believe you

      10       indicated that you might be willing to accept the

      11       concept, at least, that the Commission could eliminate

      12       the quality of service monitoring program and instead

      13       impose a monetary fine, is that correct?

      14            A.   That's what I said, yes.

      15            Q.   And do you still stand by that today?

      16            A.   I will recognize, first, that I was a little

      17       tired when I said that, but I do agree.  I have some

      18       hesitation about a monitoring program.  I think that's

      19       probably the nice way to go about doing this, but I do

      20       get frustrated that when you get into a monitoring

      21       program it's more like the Commission sitting there

      22       watching them do bad instead of correcting the problem.

      23       So I get frustrated when I think about what a monitoring

      24       program is going to include, and if the only way to get

      25       a company's attention is to penalize them in some way to
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       1       get their attention to correct their mistakes.

       2            Q.   Okay.  I think that's the questions I had on

       3       the quality of service.  Now I want to move on to rate

       4       case expense.  And we had a little bit of discussion

       5       with Mr. May about this.  I think my questions are

       6       slightly different.  But specifically the first question

       7       is is it possible that some Florida attorneys may earn

       8       more than the highest total listed in the Bar's survey?

       9            A.   It's certainly possible.

      10            Q.   And are you aware that the Commission

      11       discussed the use of the survey -- the results of the

      12       survey at the May 24th, 2011, Commission Conference for

      13       this docket?

      14            A.   I believe it came up, yes.

      15            Q.   And are you aware that the Commission also

      16       discussed the use of the survey results at the

      17       October 4th, 2011, Commission Conference regarding Lake

      18       Utility Services, and that is Docket Number 100426-WS?

      19            A.   It came up, yes.

      20            Q.   And to your knowledge, did the Commission make

      21       any adjustments to the hourly rates of the attorneys

      22       allowed in rate case expense based on the results of the

      23       survey at either of those Agenda Conferences?

      24            A.   Not at those times, no.

      25            Q.   Thank you.  And then the third area I would
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       1       like to briefly discuss with you is your work

       2       experience.  And Mr. May covered some of it, but I

       3       wanted to step back a little bit to the earlier part of

       4       your employment.  And I believe you mentioned in your

       5       Direct Testimony that you had worked as an accounting

       6       analyst, is that correct?

       7            A.   That is correct.

       8            Q.   And would part of your duties as an accounting

       9       analyst have included looking at utility rate filings?

      10            A.   Yes, they did.

      11            Q.   And would that include looking at things like

      12       rate base, and expenses, and the goal of calculating a

      13       revenue requirement for the utility?

      14            A.   That's correct.

      15            Q.   And once you had looked at that revenue

      16       requirement, would you send the results of that on to a

      17       rates analyst who would then design a rate structure?

      18            A.   I believe that at most times it did go to a

      19       rate analyst.  I know in -- I believe there was a case

      20       when I was in auditing that we were helping out and we

      21       did a small case, and we did the rates on our own in

      22       that case, but it was a small staff-assisted case, I

      23       believe.

      24            Q.   So you do have a bit of rate design experience

      25       yourself?
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       1            A.   A very slight bit, yes.  And I'm not going to

       2       take credit for the design as much as applying the Excel

       3       spreadsheet to the numbers.

       4            Q.   Would you agree with me that when you are

       5       designing rates, essentially in order to design those

       6       rates you would have to have the revenue requirement

       7       from the analyst and also the billing determinants as

       8       sort of prerequisites?

       9            A.   That's how it's done, yes.

      10            Q.   And so, therefore, would you agree with me

      11       that the rate structure is sort of a function of the

      12       revenue requirements and the billing determinants?

      13            A.   The rate structure?  No, I wouldn't.  The rate

      14       structure would be designed on whether you're trying to

      15       include fixed costs in a particular place, whether it's

      16       a base facility charge, or the gallonage charge, and the

      17       variable costs, and the investment costs, and things

      18       like that.

      19            Q.   Not the structure, but the rates themselves, I

      20       guess, that would be charged to the ratepayers?

      21            A.   Could you say that again.

      22            Q.   Would the rates that are ultimately ordered by

      23       the Commission be a function of the utility's revenue

      24       requirement and the billing determinants?

      25            A.   That's correct.
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       1                 MR. HARRIS:  Thank you.  I think that's all

       2       the questions we have for you.  Thank you so much.

       3                 THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners.

       5                 Ms. Vandiver, I have a question.  Talking

       6       about rate case expense and setting a rate of 275 for

       7       attorneys, what other things do you think that we should

       8       be -- that we are not currently benchmarking when it

       9       comes to rate case expense?

      10                 THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry, I didn't understand

      11       the question.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I look at the process of

      13       putting a cap on what you're going to put on what an

      14       attorney can make as benchmarking.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Right.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We do a lot of benchmarking

      17       as it applies to rate case expenses.  What other things

      18       that we are not currently benchmarking do you think that

      19       we should be benchmarking?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  Management fees.  I would say I

      21       think everything should be looked at from, in some

      22       way -- I think a critical part of an analysis of a rate

      23       case is to benchmark where the company is compared to

      24       the last case, and what's an average for the industry,

      25       and use that as a guide.  When you start putting a cap
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       1       on things I think you tend to limit it more to areas

       2       where there is less of a market maybe, or where there --

       3       let me think.  I think salaries is another area where we

       4       have looked at before, and I think the Commission has

       5       occasionally made adjustments to salaries for whether

       6       they are owners or -- usually it's the owners or not the

       7       field people as much, but the management of a company.

       8       And I think that has been done before.

       9                 I think there is certainly a page in the MFRs

      10       that benchmarks everything to look at the amount of the

      11       increase from the last case that has been used as a

      12       guide.  I don't know that you can use that to randomly

      13       cut all expenses, but I do think it has to be looked at

      14       for reasonableness, and when a company is over that

      15       amount it needs to be looked at and justified why it is.

      16       Does that help?

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It does.  And this is not a

      18       trick question by any means.  I agree that we should be

      19       doing more benchmarking.  I'm actually looking for

      20       ideas.  This question has come up before, and the

      21       argument I hear from staff is specific to the management

      22       fees that you are speaking of.  It's difficult to

      23       benchmark, because you go some places and the water

      24       hardness is hard enough to stand on, and some places

      25       where you just have to drip a little bit of hypo in
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       1       there and you are ready to go.

       2                 Do you have any ideas or suggestions on how do

       3       you benchmark something on that line, or it's just

       4       always -- do you keep it localized to specific areas, or

       5       is it just based on what your last rate case was?

       6                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I think that's why it's

       7       hard to benchmark certain areas, and why management fees

       8       are not as specific to the type of service necessarily.

       9       They could, but they tend to be more administrative

      10       costs, and those would be something that should be more

      11       uniform from company to company.

      12                 I'm thinking of another company, like we used

      13       Lake Utility Services a little bit ago.  If their

      14       administrative costs are a certain amount, why are some

      15       companies higher than that?  It seems like there might

      16       be a way to study what the average is for the state.  I

      17       know it's hard -- and, you know, I have looked at some

      18       of the other testimony, I don't want to get out of my

      19       area, but you have to be careful to look at what the

      20       data is that you're looking at, whether it is complete

      21       or not, because some annual reports are not complete.

      22       So you have to try to look at that.

      23                 But once you have done that, why should one

      24       company have administrative costs five times more than

      25       another company?  It just doesn't seem appropriate.
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       1       Salaries and wages for management would be the same

       2       thing whether it's a management fee or just an

       3       owner/manager.

       4                 You know, benchmarks for other things, I think

       5       you do sometimes use a benchmark when you do plant in a

       6       sense that, you know, you're looking at bids there, so

       7       you have kind of got a fail-safe there so that you are

       8       not letting a company just go and pay whatever it wants.

       9       You're not going to get a gold-plated plant if you're

      10       getting bids.  So I think you're avoiding the use of

      11       benchmarks in that sense.  On cost of capital, you

      12       definitely use benchmarks in the cost of capital

      13       already.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No, but I was just talking

      15       about things that were not benchmarked.

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Oh, that you're not already.

      17       Yes.  Well, I think -- I guess those would be some of my

      18       bigger areas would be management fees, and manager

      19       salaries, administrative costs, those would be some.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Commissioner Balbis.

      21                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      22       I only have one question, and it's along the same line

      23       of questioning that you just had.

      24                 In your previous experience as being head of

      25       the audit bureau, correct?
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

       2                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Mr. May had you read an

       3       excerpt from a previous audit, which I believe stated to

       4       the effect of none of these costs were found to be

       5       imprudent, et cetera.  But when the audit group audits a

       6       company, and specifically in Tab 8, Audit Finding 2, and

       7       according to this audit finding the group selected a

       8       sample of invoices.  They certainly did not audit every

       9       invoice or every cost associated with the company,

      10       correct?

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Correct.

      12                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And in this case, there

      13       was over $255,000 worth of expenses that the audit group

      14       found should not be passed along, correct?

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Correct.

      16                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Now, does the audit

      17       group look at whether or not the costs were prudent in

      18       that they spent too much time or money doing a certain

      19       task or group of tasks, or is it more of was it properly

      20       documented, was it properly assigned to the correct cost

      21       centers, et cetera?

      22                 THE WITNESS:  Even though I was the bureau

      23       chief, I will have to admit that different auditors have

      24       different interpretations of prudency, so I would

      25       hesitate to say that they always look at it a certain
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       1       way or that they never look at it a certain way.  I have

       2       found in my experience that generally they did not look

       3       at it from a global prudency perspective, but whether it

       4       was documented and put into the rate place in the right

       5       manner.

       6                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  So, again, back

       7       to the benchmarking concept.  There really isn't any

       8       benchmarking of the management fees, it is more of a

       9       documentation of, yes, they did spend this amount that

      10       was properly assigned to a certain cost center?

      11                 THE WITNESS:  That is what the audit does,

      12       yes.

      13                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brisé.

      15                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      16                 When looking at the quality of service from

      17       the perspective of trying to make correlations between

      18       how the individual customer interacts with the company,

      19       were you able to find any correlations, for example, if

      20       we looked at a particular area, if there were more

      21       billing issues, did we see that there were more quality

      22       of service complaints, or were there more customer

      23       service complaints?  I mean, are there any direct

      24       correlations that you can identify or that maybe you

      25       have identified from looking at the quality of service
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       1       reports?

       2                 THE WITNESS:  I did not look at them for

       3       correlations, no, I'm sorry.

       4                 COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  Thank you.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Redirect.

       6                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Hopefully just a few brief

       7       areas.

       8                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

       9       BY MS. CHRISTENSEN:

      10            Q.   I think you were having some conversation with

      11       Mr. May regarding the decrease in salaries that

      12       attributed -- or a decrease in the salary and expenses

      13       from the previous rate case to the current rate case.

      14       Do you recall that conversation?

      15            A.   I do.

      16            Q.   Okay.  Could the reduction in salaries be due

      17       to the reduction in staff for meter readers and

      18       maintenance positions that were discussed previously?

      19            A.   It certainly could be.

      20            Q.   And I think you also had a discussion with Mr.

      21       May, and I think it may also have been with Mr. Harris

      22       regarding certain water cases regarding rate case

      23       expense and allowing higher attorney fees than you are

      24       suggesting in this case.  Do you know if any of those

      25       cases that they mentioned were subject to a fully

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       717

       1       litigated hearing?

       2            A.   Other than the last Aqua rate case, and the

       3       Lucie, anyone else was not -- or Water Management was

       4       not -- Water Management was a fully litigated hearing,

       5       but Lucie was not.

       6            Q.   Okay.  And I think you had said that in the

       7       last rate case or the last case that came before the

       8       Commission at Agenda there was a reduction, is that what

       9       your testimony was?

      10            A.   Yes.  In the Eagle Ridge Utilities, Inc. case,

      11       the Commission voted to remove all in-house rate case

      12       expense, all rate case expense for in-house employees.

      13            Q.   And can you explain why you believe it's

      14       appropriate to remove in-house expenses?

      15            A.   Because it is a duplication of what has

      16       already been accounted for during the test year.

      17            Q.   Okay.  And based on your review of the quality

      18       of service in this case, how would you characterize

      19       Aqua's quality of service?

      20            A.   As unsatisfactory.

      21                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I have no further questions.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Ms. Christensen,

      23       exhibits?

      24                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes.  I would move

      25       Ms. Vandiver's exhibits into the record, and I believe
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       1       those start at 81 through Exhibit 88.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That is 81, 82, 83, 84, 85,

       3       86, 87, and 88 into the record.

       4                 (Exhibit Numbers 81 through 88 admitted into

       5       the record.)

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. May.

       7                 MR. MAY:  Aqua would move Exhibits 311 and

       8       312.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Move 311 and 312 into the

      10       record.  Are there any objections to moving those?

      11                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes, I would object at this

      12       time.  I don't think Ms. Vandiver testified to all the

      13       documents that are contained in his master document

      14       list.  I have no objection to, I guess, 312, which is

      15       the prior case audit, but I think she only testified on

      16       a few of the attached exhibits in the master document

      17       list, and I think it would probably be more appropriate

      18       until, you know, there has been testimony proffered on

      19       all of the exhibits to move it in at that point,

      20       assuming we get there.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well --

      22                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I mean, I obviously have no

      23       objection to orders, but there are a few things that are

      24       in here that are not orders or rules.  There is a couple

      25       of letters from DEP, there is a contract with Mr.
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       1       Woodcock.  So particularly with reference to those

       2       particular items.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'm not sure if it's

       4       necessary to have everything in an exhibit addressed,

       5       but I think out of fairness we'll wait until the end.

       6       And if there's specifics in here that you want to

       7       disclued (phonetic), we can do that, or we can have that

       8       conversation at that time.

       9                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  That's fair.  Thank you.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So we won't enter it now,

      11       but, Mr. May, if you would bring this back up towards

      12       the end.

      13                 MR. MAY:  Absolutely.  I understand where Ms.

      14       Christensen is coming from on it.

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      16                 MS. HELTON:  Mr. Chairman, may I say something

      17       about using orders, and rules, and statutes as exhibits

      18       just so everybody is clear, and it might make the record

      19       a little bit more clear.  I don't believe that they need

      20       to be offered up as an exhibit.  I don't even believe

      21       that you have to seek official recognition prior to the

      22       hearing.  It's the Commission's longstanding practice

      23       that if you have a Florida Commission order, a statute

      24       that falls under your jurisdiction, or a rule that you

      25       have adopted, or a rule that you use in your governance,
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       1       then it does not require official recognition.  I think

       2       it's very helpful to have copies of them distributed for

       3       use during the hearing, but I don't think they need to

       4       be listed as an exhibit.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, I'm not going to

       6       complain about this, just like I wouldn't complain about

       7       Ms. Christensen when she gave us a stack of these

       8       things.  I would much rather them come at one big piece

       9       than ten different times coming up here with different

      10       ones.  But I do understand what you're saying, because I

      11       know as Public Counsel brought up other ones that were

      12       orders and that sort of thing, and we didn't put exhibit

      13       numbers on those, as well.  But duly noted.

      14                 Let's take a quick five-minute break, rest the

      15       fingers for the court reporter over there, and we'll

      16       start back again at about 4:00 o'clock.

      17                 (Recess.)

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Ms. Christensen, you

      19       have the floor.

      20                             EARL POUCHER

      21       was called as a witness on behalf of the Citizens of the

      22       State of Florida, and having been duly sworn, testified

      23       as follows:

      24                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

      25
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       1       BY MS. CHRISTENSEN:

       2            Q.   Mr. Poucher, can you please state your name

       3       and your business address for the record?

       4            A.   Good afternoon, Commissioners.  My name is

       5       Earl Poucher.  I'm testifying on behalf of the Citizens

       6       of the State of Florida for the Office of Public

       7       Counsel, State of Florida, 111 West Madison Street,

       8       Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1400.  My title is Chief

       9       Legislative Analyst.

      10            Q.   And did you cause to be filed Prefiled Direct

      11       Testimony consisting of 39 pages in this docket?

      12            A.   Yes, I did.  Are you on your speaker?

      13            Q.   Yes, but I can move closer if that would be

      14       easier for you.

      15                 Do you have any corrections to your testimony?

      16            A.   No, I do not.

      17            Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

      18       today, would your answers be the same?

      19            A.   Yes, they would.

      20                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I would ask that the

      21       testimony be entered into the record as though read.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter Mr. Poucher's

      23       testimony into the record.

      24

      25
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       1       BY MS. CHRISTENSEN:

       2            Q.   And did your prefiled testimony have twelve

       3       exhibits labeled REP-1 through 12 attached to it?

       4            A.   Yes, it does.

       5            Q.   And do you have any corrections to make to

       6       those exhibits today?

       7            A.   No, I do not.

       8                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I would ask that the witness

       9       be allowed to provide his five-minute summary.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      11                 Mr. Poucher, welcome.

      12                 THE WITNESS:  Commissioners, my Direct

      13       Testimony in this docket deals with those issues

      14       relating directly to customer service.  My testimony,

      15       together with that of the testimony of Kim Dismukes and

      16       Denise Vandiver also appearing on behalf of Public

      17       Counsel, covers the full scope of the customer input in

      18       this docket.  And that massive data base includes a

      19       series of customer meetings that were held last year by

      20       the PSC staff in response to the initial PAA.  It

      21       includes the customer correspondence files that the

      22       Commission solicits when they go out on the road to

      23       hearings, so that customers have an opportunity to

      24       participate in the process.  It includes the transcripts

      25       of the public hearings that you held in this docket and
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       1       presided over at the various Aqua locations, and it

       2       includes copies of the Aqua customer complaints that

       3       have been received by this Commission during 2010 and

       4       2011 year-to-date.

       5                 My Direct Testimony includes eight separate

       6       exhibits, and there's the stack.  We have broken them

       7       down for ease of trying to find the complaints, but

       8       these are the details of the PSC complaints that have

       9       been filed against Aqua by PSC customers during the past

      10       two years, starting January 1st, 2010.  There are 769

      11       pages in these complaint files, and they provide the

      12       specific details.

      13                 They are good reading, and I will tell you why

      14       they are good reading.  When customers come to our

      15       hearings and complain, you hear the customer's side of

      16       the story, and frequently its heart rending.  But when

      17       customers come and complain to the PSC through a formal

      18       complaint process, that complaint is forwarded to the

      19       company, the company investigates it, and has 15 days to

      20       respond back, and then the file begins to get larger as

      21       your PSC staff does their job as a referee between the

      22       customer and the company.  This is not part of my

      23       testimony, but if you will read those files to any

      24       length whatsoever, there is good evidence that your

      25       staff does great work on a very difficult job of
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       1       handling these PSC complaints.

       2                 The evidence there is not all bad.  I found

       3       Aqua to be at fault in some area of their handling of

       4       the complaint in over half of the complaints, and I have

       5       documented those failures.  Missed commitments, failure

       6       to return phone calls, wrong information, back billing,

       7       of course billing issues, they are all there.  But if

       8       you read through the full body of all of those

       9       complaints, and you read the complaint data that has

      10       been developed in my testimony and my exhibits, the

      11       correspondence files, the hearings, look at it from way

      12       back, it's not hard to see that there is significant

      13       inefficiencies in the way that Aqua delivers its

      14       service.  And if you look at that full record, it's easy

      15       to see overwhelming customer dissatisfaction with the

      16       quality of the water and the quality of service

      17       delivered by Aqua.

      18                 As Public Counsel witnesses testifying on

      19       behalf of the Citizens of Florida, we have given you a

      20       record here that is massive that will support a

      21       determination by this Commission that their service is

      22       unsatisfactory.  It's my recommendation in this

      23       testimony that Aqua needs on-going incentives,

      24       motivation, to improve its efficiency, to improve the

      25       quality of its product, and to improve its customer
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       1       service.  And that means that our recommendation is you

       2       set the ROE at the bottom of the range that you

       3       determine is reasonable, and you continue to closely

       4       monitor the company's progress in meeting its customer

       5       service goals.

       6                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  We tender the witness for

       7       cross-examination.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

       9                 Mr. May.

      10                 MR. MAY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      11                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      12       BY MR. MAY:

      13            Q.   Mr. Poucher, do you have what has been

      14       designated as Exhibit 311 up there, the witness copy of

      15       the demonstrative exhibit?

      16            A.   This stack?

      17            Q.   Yes, sir.

      18            A.   I will find it.

      19                 MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, I think we have a --

      20                 THE WITNESS:  What am I looking for?

      21                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  He has a copy of it.  He's

      22       just indicating which one he wants you to refer to.

      23                 MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, I think we have a

      24       batch of exhibits that we may want to hand out at one

      25       time so we don't keep going back and forth.  If you
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       1       could give me one minute, I will see if I have those

       2       together.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.  While we are waiting

       4       on Mr. May, let's just go ahead and label this staff

       5       exhibit as 313.  A short title will be Late-filed

       6       Exhibit Number 10 and 11 for Mr. Poucher.

       7                 MR. JAEGER:  Mr. Chairman, this is Ralph

       8       Jaeger.  I just noticed that there is a Late-filed 1

       9       that is a part of this, so we might as well put

      10       Late-filed 1, 10, and 11.  We are actually only going to

      11       be asking questions on 10 and 11, but this was submitted

      12       all as one document.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We'll make that

      14       change.

      15                 (Exhibit 313 marked for identification.)

      16                 MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, this is going to be a

      17       series of documents.  Ms. Theresa is going to be busy.

      18       I don't know what the most efficient thing to do is.  I

      19       guess we will keep giving her the documents and allowing

      20       her to distribute them.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We can allow her to continue

      22       to do that.  Let's put a number on the first one you are

      23       dealing with, and we will go from there.  You can

      24       continue as we pass this stuff out, if possible.

      25                 MR. MAY:  Okay.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Are one of these two the

       2       first one?

       3                 MR. MAY:  Those are the two staff witnesses.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  Mr. May, you are

       5       starting with 314.  Which one do you want to label that?

       6                 MR. MAY:  314.  I'd like to have it identified

       7       for the record as Composite Exhibit E-mails between

       8       Charlie Beck and AUF, Phase II Monitoring.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  That's 314.  What

      10       else have you got?

      11                 MR. MAY:  315 would be the e-mail dated

      12       April 6th, 2010, from Bruce May to Charles Beck

      13       regarding Phase II monitoring.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  315.  Okay.

      15                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Commissioner, I'm sorry, can

      16       we ask to have that started over.  I guess there had

      17       been some confusion in the handing out process, and I

      18       had given my copies to our witness to ensure that he had

      19       them, and then had requested additional copies because

      20       I'm sharing with the Attorney General.  And I just need

      21       to make sure we have all copies.  I think those were the

      22       only two that we were missing were the e-mail composite

      23       exhibits and I need to know what number they were, as

      24       well.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We'll go back to
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       1       that.  316?

       2                 MR. MAY:  316 would be Exhibit SC-6 to Susan

       3       Chambers' rebuttal testimony.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's 316.  317?

       5                 MR. MAY:  317 would be AUF's letter and

       6       responses to OPC's 15th Request for Production of

       7       Documents.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  And 318?

       9                 MR. MAY:  318 would be an excerpt from

      10       October 11th, 2011, New Port Richey customer service

      11       hearing.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  319?

      13                 MR. MAY:  319 would be Standard & Poor's

      14       summary of FGUA's Lindrick utility system.

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is that all the ones you

      16       had?  Okay.

      17                 Ms. Christensen, did you get those two

      18       e-mails?

      19                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I think we are going to try

      20       and retrieve them, but I needed to know what 314 and 315

      21       were labeled.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Composite Exhibit

      23       E-mails between Charlie Beck and Aqua Utilities is 314,

      24       and e-mail dated April 6th, 2010, from Bruce May to

      25       Charlie Beck is 315.
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       1                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Thank you for your

       2       indulgence.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Not a problem.

       4                 MR. MAY:  I think we are at 320 now.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's correct.  320 would

       6       be excerpt from October 11 New Port Richey customer

       7       service hearing, Pages 137 through 140.

       8                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  We're not there.  I don't

       9       think we have had that handed out to us yet.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes, I've got it.

      11                 MR. JAEGER:  Staff does not have that copy,

      12       either.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  The description is Pages 137

      14       through 140 excerpts from --

      15                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes.  We are just getting

      16       that handed to us now.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  321?

      18                 MR. MAY:  321 is Earl Poucher e-mails.

      19                 MR. JAEGER:  You have e-mails of Earl Poucher

      20       e-mails and you have Earl Poucher e-mails with Frank

      21       Reams.  Which one is that?

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  321 is Earl Poucher E-mails

      23       with Frank Reams.

      24                 MR. MAY:  322 is the same title, but it's a

      25       different batch of e-mails.  We'll call it Part 2.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I don't believe I have that.

       2       (Pause.)  Mr. May, I have to apologize.  I do not have

       3       what you just called 322.  I only have one stack that

       4       says e-mails from Earl Poucher.  Yes, the one from Frank

       5       Reams.  That's 321.

       6                 MR. MAY:  Strike the 322.  I think it's just

       7       321, the e-mails from Earl Poucher with Frank Reams.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  I have that.  And I

       9       found the other one.  It says e-mails with Earl Poucher,

      10       and that is just the end of the description?  Did you

      11       want to call that 322?

      12                 MR. MAY:  I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman?

      13                 MR. JAEGER:  Bruce, there's one that says Earl

      14       Poucher e-mails with Frank Reams and then there is

      15       another one that says e-mails of Earl Poucher.  And 321

      16       was the one with Frank Reams, and we have not designated

      17       e-mails of Earl Poucher yet.

      18                 MR. MAY:  That's 322, excuse me.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      20                 MR. MAY:  The next exhibit is 323.  It's Food

      21       and Water Watch, 2009 Annual Report.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      23                 MR. MAY:  And the last one is 324, and that's

      24       AUF's letters of September 3rd, 2009, and December 23rd,

      25       2009, to Charles Beck.
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       1                 MR. CURTIN:  (Inaudible; microphone off.)

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  Let's make sure

       3       that everybody has got 313 through 324.

       4                 Yes, you are missing 324?

       5                 MR. CURTIN:  Yes, I am.  But if it will be

       6       provided tomorrow, that would be fine, if you don't have

       7       an extra copy.

       8                 MR. RICHARDS:  I need a copy of 321, also.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  321 is the one that is

      10       labeled Earl Poucher E-mails with Frank Reams.

      11                 MR. RICHARDS:  Right, and I don't have it.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Has everybody else

      13       got 13 through 24?

      14                 MS. BRADLEY:  I have one that is described as

      15       Food and Water Watch, which I'm not sure what number

      16       that is.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That is 321.  I'm sorry,

      18       323.

      19                 MS. BRADLEY:  Then I'm just missing 324.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  324 is a composite exhibit,

      21       Aqua Utilities Florida letters dated September 3rd.

      22       It's about two or three pages thick.  Did you find it?

      23                 MS. BRADLEY:  I think we did.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Did you find one, or did you

      25       get one?
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       1                 MR. CURTIN:  If you will make a copy tomorrow,

       2       that would be fine.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  And the one you are

       4       waiting on is 324?  Okay.

       5                 MR. MAY:  Thank you for your indulgence.

       6                 (Exhibit Numbers 314 through 324 marked for

       7       identification.)

       8       BY MR. MAY:

       9            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Poucher.

      10            A.   Good afternoon.

      11            Q.   I'm Bruce May with Holland and Knight

      12       representing Aqua in this case.  And it's good to see

      13       you, again.

      14                 We recently had occasion to talk about this

      15       case at your deposition, did we not?

      16            A.   Yes, we did.

      17            Q.   Do you have a keep of your deposition

      18       transcript with you?

      19            A.   No, I do not.

      20                 MR. JAEGER:  I have an extra one.

      21       BY MR. MAY:

      22            Q.   And I think we have already confirmed you have

      23       Exhibit 311, which is a demonstrative exhibit.  It is

      24       kind of a compilation of various orders and statutes, et

      25       cetera, that we will be referencing during our
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       1       conversation.

       2            A.   Are you talking about this one here?

       3            Q.   Yes.

       4            A.   Okay.  I have it.

       5            Q.   You testified in AUF's last rate case on

       6       quality of service, did you not?

       7            A.   Yes, I did.

       8            Q.   And that was back in 2008?

       9            A.   Correct.

      10            Q.   And you're testifying on quality of service in

      11       this case, correct?

      12            A.   Correct.

      13            Q.   In the final order in the last case, the

      14       Commission found AUF's quality of service to be marginal

      15       except for Chuluota, which the Commission found to be

      16       unsatisfactory, correct?

      17            A.   Yes.

      18            Q.   Now, the Commission makes quality of service

      19       determinations in every water and wastewater case,

      20       doesn't it?

      21            A.   Yes, they do.

      22            Q.   And in making that quality of service

      23       determination, the Commission is generally governed by

      24       Rule 25-30.433, correct?

      25            A.   I believe that's probably correct.
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       1            Q.   Just for you to follow along, why don't you

       2       turn to Tab 5 of the master exhibit.  Can you read the

       3       highlighted portions of the rule?

       4            A.   I can read it.

       5            Q.   For the record.

       6            A.   "The Commission in every rate case shall make

       7       a determination of the quality of service provided by

       8       the utility.  This shall be derived from an evaluation

       9       of three separate components of water and wastewater

      10       utility operations; the quality of the utility's

      11       product, water and wastewater, operational conditions of

      12       the utility's plant and facilities, and the utility's

      13       attempt to address customer satisfaction."

      14            Q.   As OPC's quality of service witness, I need to

      15       better understand which of those three components of

      16       quality of service you are testifying about?

      17            A.   You're going to have to either talk louder or

      18       get closer.  We had this trouble in the hearings, too.

      19            Q.   As OPC's quality of service witness, I need to

      20       better understand which of those three components of

      21       quality of service you are testifying on.  You have

      22       never inspected any of AUF's wastewater facilities, have

      23       you?

      24            A.   To answer your first question, I'm addressing

      25       the utility's attempt to address customer satisfaction

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       774

       1       in my Direct Testimony.

       2            Q.   And you have never inspected any of AUF's

       3       wastewater facilities, correct?

       4            A.   I have been at their wastewater facility

       5       plants, but an inside inspection like we would do at a

       6       nuclear plant, no.

       7            Q.   And you have never inspected the operational

       8       condition of any of AUF's plant or facilities, correct?

       9            A.   Say that one more time.

      10            Q.   You have never inspected the operational

      11       condition of any of AUF's plants or facilities, correct?

      12            A.   Well, I have been in AUF customer service

      13       territory.  I have been at customer locations.  I have

      14       been with AUF employees.  We have looked at various

      15       piece-parts of the AUF facilities, so the answer is no.

      16            Q.   At your deposition you stated that your

      17       testimony touches on the quality of AUF's water and

      18       wastewater product, correct?

      19            A.   Repeat your question.

      20            Q.   I said at your deposition you testified that

      21       your testimony touches on the quality of AUF's water and

      22       wastewater product.

      23            A.   I believe that is correct from my deposition.

      24       I do include some information about the quality of the

      25       water, particularly as it relates to customers
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       1       complaining about it.  But in terms of compliance, no.

       2            Q.   Again, as I mentioned to Ms. Vandiver, in the

       3       last case we had stipulated the depositions of the

       4       witnesses into the record.  And, unfortunately, that is

       5       not the case here.  So I'm going to have to walk you

       6       down a path that you and I walked before, so bear with

       7       me.

       8                 When you talk about water quality, you're not

       9       a water quality specialist, are you?

      10            A.   I'm not a trained water quality specialist.

      11            Q.   And you're not a specialist in wastewater, are

      12       you?

      13            A.   I'm not a trained specialist in wastewater.

      14            Q.   And you're not a toxicologist?

      15            A.   I'm not a trained toxicologist.

      16            Q.   And you're not a hydrologist?

      17            A.   I'm not a trained hydrologist.

      18            Q.   Are you an untrained hydrologist?

      19            A.   Yes.  I think I know a lot about hydrology,

      20       but I'm an amateur.

      21            Q.   You and me both.  Have you ever operated a

      22       water utility?

      23            A.   No, I have not.

      24            Q.   And you have never operated a wastewater

      25       utility, either, have you?
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       1            A.   No, definitely.

       2            Q.   At your deposition you stated that your

       3       testimony addresses the third prong of quality of

       4       service, and that is the utility's attempt to address

       5       customer satisfaction, correct?

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   And you also stated at your deposition that a

       8       utility will never be able to meet 100 percent customer

       9       satisfaction, correct?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   I want to talk to you about AUF's attempt to

      12       meet customer satisfaction, but to put matters in

      13       context, I'd like to first better understand more of

      14       your background.  During your deposition you stated that

      15       you have a background in telecommunications regulation,

      16       correct?

      17            A.   I have a background of telecommunications

      18       regulation and operation.

      19            Q.   And I think you stated that you are better

      20       versed in telecom regulations, but you still have a good

      21       understanding of water and wastewater utility

      22       regulation, correct?

      23            A.   Our job at the Public Counsel is to deal with

      24       all public utilities, and so the answer to your question

      25       is my major expertise in the past has been telecom, but
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       1       I have also worked heavily in electric, and I worked on

       2       the original Southern States case.  I testified in the

       3       last water case.  I am testifying in this water case,

       4       and so we do it all at Public Counsel.

       5            Q.   Sure.  And just so we are not missing each

       6       other, my question, you have a good understanding of

       7       water and wastewater utility regulation, correct?

       8            A.   I believe I have a good understanding of it.

       9            Q.   And you agreed at your deposition that the

      10       Florida Statute governing the Commission's regulation of

      11       water and wastewater utilities is Chapter 367, correct?

      12            A.   Without looking at it, yes.

      13            Q.   And the Commission's rules regulating water

      14       and wastewater utilities is found in Chapter 25-30 of

      15       the Florida Administrative Code, correct?

      16            A.   Without looking at that exact number, I would

      17       agree.

      18            Q.   You also stated that the statutes and rules

      19       governing the regulation of water and wastewater

      20       utilities are different from the statutes and rules

      21       governing telephone companies, correct?

      22            A.   And, yes, I agree to that.

      23            Q.   I think you mentioned that there was a

      24       definite difference between the two statutes, correct?

      25            A.   Well, Florida does not have any regulatory
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       1       statutes or rules dealing with telephone companies

       2       because we don't regulate them anymore, but the

       3       regulations that we operated under in years past were

       4       far more extensive in terms of reporting and performance

       5       for the telephone companies than for the water

       6       companies.

       7            Q.   Sure.  Thank you, Mr. Poucher, for that.

       8                 With that background, I would like to ask you

       9       a couple of questions about your testimony.  Let's start

      10       on Pages 28 and 29.

      11            A.   Okay.

      12            Q.   You are critical of the monitoring reports and

      13       other data that AUF has provided to the Commission since

      14       the last rate case, are you not?

      15            A.   Yes.

      16            Q.   I want to talk with you about the monitoring

      17       programs that have been in place since the final order

      18       in the last case.  Can you turn to Tab 1 in the

      19       Demonstrative Exhibit Number 311?

      20            A.   Tab 1.

      21            Q.   It's Tab 1.  It is actually Page 22 of the

      22       final order in the last case.

      23            A.   Yes.

      24            Q.   I want to talk to you about the initial

      25       monitoring program.  You and I charted about this at
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       1       your deposition.  Are you familiar with these three

       2       components of the initial monitoring program that are

       3       summarized on Page 22 of the final order?

       4            A.   Yes.

       5            Q.   So the Commission's final order, Mr. Poucher,

       6       required AUF to submit over a six-month period

       7       essentially three monthly reports.  First, a report on

       8       information regarding customer complaints; second, sound

       9       recordings coming into the call center; third, meter

      10       reading route schedules so that staff could

      11       independently verify the accuracy of AUF's meter

      12       reading, is that correct?

      13            A.   Yes.

      14            Q.   Let me go back.  Now, AUF went forward with

      15       Phase I of this monitoring, did it not?

      16            A.   Yes.

      17            Q.   And staff reviewed the reports that AUF

      18       presented under the Phase I monitoring, and provided the

      19       Commission with its recommendation on March 4th of 2010,

      20       correct?

      21            A.   Yes.

      22            Q.   That's on Tab 2 of the Demonstrative Exhibit

      23       Number 311, correct?

      24            A.   Yes.

      25            Q.   Turn to Page 8 of that recommendation, please.
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       1            A.   Page 8?

       2            Q.   Yes, sir.  And can you read the highlighted

       3       passage for the record?

       4            A.   Sure.  "After reviewing more than 700 calls

       5       between AUF and its customers, staff believes that AUF

       6       is adequately handling its customer complaints and

       7       inquires."

       8            Q.   Let's talk a little bit about the monthly

       9       submission of sound recordings of Florida calls coming

      10       into the call center.  You recall, do you not, that

      11       because the sound recordings contained proprietary

      12       customer-specific information, Aqua requested

      13       confidential classification of those audio tapes, did it

      14       not?

      15            A.   I don't know.

      16            Q.   At your deposition you stated that you never

      17       listened to the sound recordings of those calls coming

      18       into the call center, did you?

      19            A.   No, I did not.

      20            Q.   Are you aware of anyone at the Office of

      21       Public Counsel that listened to those sound recordings?

      22            A.   We did not.

      23            Q.   Are you aware of anyone at the Office of

      24       Public Counsel that attempted to listen to those sound

      25       recordings?
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       1            A.   Well, there's more people than just myself,

       2       but I don't believe that anyone at Public Counsel did.

       3            Q.   Why not?

       4            A.   I believe that that was a staff project.

       5       Staff was heavily involved in reviewing those calls.  We

       6       trust the staff.  They do good work.  We expected them

       7       to review them and find what was in there and deal with

       8       it.

       9            Q.   And staff did review those tapes, did it not?

      10            A.   Based on their report, I would assume that

      11       they did.

      12            Q.   Can you turn to Page 7 of the recommendation,

      13       and read for the record the highlighted provision on

      14       that page?

      15            A.   "Out of the 738 total sound recordings

      16       reviewed, staff believes the majority was handled in a

      17       courteous and professional manner, and the

      18       representatives were taking the appropriate action to

      19       resolve all issues raised in the call."

      20            Q.   Let's talk about the meter reading function of

      21       the Phase I monitoring.  Turn to Page 10 and read for

      22       the record the highlighted provision there, please.

      23                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Commissioners, I'm going to

      24       object.  He has not asked a question, I mean, other than

      25       to read into the record something out of staff's
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       1       recommendation.  He hasn't asked if he was aware of what

       2       is in the recommendation, or if he has any independent

       3       knowledge.  I think we are starting to get a little far

       4       afield having him read into the records things that are

       5       not his own work.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. May, is there a question

       7       coming?

       8                 MR. MAY:  There is one coming.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      10                 MR. MAY:  And what I'm getting at is I think

      11       that Mr. Poucher has testified that he never listened to

      12       the sound recordings, and I want to ask him a couple of

      13       questions about that.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      15            A.   So did you want me to read this or not?

      16            Q.   Yes, please, at the top.

      17            A.   "Based on the findings of the --"

      18                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Objection.  I don't think he

      19       actually asked him a question.  And, I'm sorry, I

      20       apologize to my witness, but I have no problem with him

      21       asking a question and having him answer it, but asking

      22       him to read into the record something out of a document

      23       that he did not create or that is not an order of the

      24       Commission is -- I think we are starting to get a little

      25       far afield.
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       1                 MR. MAY:  I can short circuit this.

       2       BY MR. MAY:

       3            Q.   I think if you have got the highlighted

       4       provision, I will just ask you to read it and I will ask

       5       you a question about it.

       6            A.   Okay, and I'll respond.  "Based on the

       7       findings of the sample results presented above, staff

       8       recommends that there is no systemic failure in AUF's

       9       meter reading procedures and that AUF's meter readings

      10       can be relied upon.  In addition, since AUF's rate case,

      11       the company has replaced its manually read meters with

      12       electronically scanned meters.  This new meter reading

      13       technology should reduce the likelihood of the meter

      14       reading errors attributable to human error.

      15                 You had a question?

      16            Q.   And staff ultimately recommended that AUF's

      17       performance under the initial monitoring plan was

      18       adequate, correct?  That's on Page 13.

      19            A.   As it relates to those two issues.  And I

      20       would expound on that a little bit.  I know that the

      21       staff recommended that the performance was adequate, but

      22       you have got to realize that this company had replaced

      23       all of its meters with electronic ERT meter-reading

      24       devices that did not require a meter reader to go read

      25       the meter.  At that point in time, when the staff was
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       1       following the company around reading meters to comply

       2       with this order, in my opinion it was a waste of time

       3       because the company had already resolved the issues of

       4       meter reading.

       5                 We knew that the meter reading problem had

       6       been resolved by the replacement of the meters, and it

       7       was not productive at all to follow the company around

       8       to check to see if they read their electronic meters.

       9       And so whether or not the staff ruled that their

      10       procedures were appropriate or not was not relevant to

      11       customer service, because the replacement of the meters

      12       the customers paid for and are continuing to pay for is

      13       what resolved the problem of meter reading with Aqua.

      14                 Likewise, on the call center side of the

      15       house, the Commission staff was monitoring Aqua

      16       Utilities' call centers with selected recordings that

      17       were extracted from their database, and it's pretty

      18       naive to expect that Aqua was not aware of the fact that

      19       the PSC was taking that sample and was retrieving those

      20       records.  It was a totally inappropriate way to check on

      21       the call center performance and didn't result in any

      22       findings of bad performance.

      23                 And, my gosh, this is one of the biggest water

      24       companies in the country.  Surely they could have been

      25       aware and taken the appropriate action to make sure that
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       1       they gave good service during the time period that they

       2       were being monitored.  We agreed to eliminate this part

       3       of the monitoring program, Phase I, at the request of

       4       Aqua because of the high cost to Aqua.  And we agreed,

       5       because it was of little value to us anyway.

       6            Q.   Thank you, Mr. Poucher.  Back to my initial

       7       question.  You were here earlier when there was a

       8       discussion among the bench and some of the witnesses

       9       about some of the complaints you read about and hear

      10       about in some of the customer service hearings about

      11       CSRs being rude to customers --

      12            A.   Yes.

      13            Q.   -- and how you verify that.  You had an

      14       opportunity, did you not, in Phase I to listen to these

      15       audiotapes, and you never took one step or made one

      16       attempt to listen to one of those tapes, did you?

      17            A.   I certainly didn't expect to find customers

      18       being treated rudely, and the answer is no.  Oh, I'm

      19       sorry, the answer is yes.

      20            Q.   So you did try to listen to the tapes?

      21            A.   No, you asked -- I'm agreeing with you.

      22       Whatever you want, yes or no.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  You asked the question in

      24       the negative and he agreed with you.

      25                 MR. MAY:  I stand corrected, Mr. Poucher.
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       1       BY MR. MAY:

       2            Q.   Now, while the staff recommended that Aqua's

       3       performance was adequate, the Commission required Aqua

       4       and OPC to agree upon a Phase II Monitoring Plan, did it

       5       not?

       6            A.   Yes, and I believe they included staff in that

       7       process.

       8            Q.   And staff, as well, correct.

       9                 And that requirement to instruct Aqua, OPC,

      10       the parties, and staff to agree upon a Phase II

      11       Monitoring Plan, that was memorialized in an order dated

      12       April 6th, 2010, correct?

      13            A.   I would agree with that.

      14            Q.   I'm not going to ask you to read the entire

      15       order, but I did want you to verify that that order is

      16       in Tab Number 3 of your packet?

      17            A.   The April 6th order, yes, I believe that's the

      18       order.

      19            Q.   Now, the order required Aqua to get together

      20       with OPC, the staff, and the other parties and agree on

      21       a more focused monitoring plan.  I think you agreed to

      22       that, right?

      23            A.   Yes.

      24            Q.   And AUF, and OPC, and the staff did just that,

      25       correct?

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       787

       1            A.   Yes, we had a meeting.

       2            Q.   I'm going to ask you some questions about a

       3       document, Composite Exhibit Number 314.

       4            A.   Okay.

       5            Q.   This is a series of e-mails between Charles

       6       Beck, who was counsel to the Office of Public Counsel,

       7       myself, Kim Joyce with Aqua, and you are copied on a

       8       number of those e-mails.  I'd like you to take a look at

       9       this.

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   Isn't it correct that pursuant to the

      12       Commission's instruction, Aqua and OPC shared

      13       information about what types of reports would go into

      14       the monitoring plan?

      15            A.   Well, I think the answer is yes, but I would

      16       have to clarify.  I think we received some reports.  It

      17       was our position early on in Phase II of the monitoring

      18       plan, and I personally discussed that with Jack

      19       Lihvarcik, who is your president, that if we were to

      20       monitor this company without undue expense, that surely

      21       we should be able to rely on their internal documents

      22       that they use to run the business, because they have to

      23       monitor their quality of service as well.  And I fully

      24       expected that those internal documents that they would

      25       use to monitor the business operation every day would
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       1       certainly be sufficient for the Commission to determine

       2       whether or not they were providing good service or not.

       3       And we shared those documents.

       4            Q.   Sure.  Let's take a look what has been

       5       designated as Exhibit Number 315.  This is the document

       6       that memorialized the ultimate agreement between OPC and

       7       AUF regarding what was to be included in the Phase II

       8       monitoring plan, correct?

       9            A.   Yes.

      10            Q.   And that plan included examples of the reports

      11       that Aqua was required to submit?

      12            A.   Yes.

      13            Q.   And we jointly submitted the Phase II

      14       Monitoring Plan to the Commission for approval, did we

      15       not?

      16            A.   Yes.

      17            Q.   And the Commission approved the Phase II

      18       Monitoring Plan in Order Number PSC 10-0297, correct?

      19            A.   Yes.

      20            Q.   And that plan itself was actually appended to

      21       the order.  I think that is in Tab 4 of the

      22       demonstrative exhibit, correct?

      23            A.   Yes.

      24            Q.   Let me refer you back to Page 21 of your

      25       testimony?
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       1            A.   Are you through with this one?

       2            Q.   Page 31 of your testimony.

       3            A.   Okay.

       4            Q.   On Lines 1 through 2, you state that Aqua

       5       points with pride in its testimony that it is answering

       6       80 percent of its calls within 90 seconds or less.  This

       7       is not good service.  Do you see that?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   Let's take a look under Tab 4 of the order

      10       approving the Phase II Monitoring Plan.  I am

      11       specifically looking at Exhibit B, the call center

      12       monitoring statistics report.

      13            A.   Do you have a page number?

      14            Q.   It's Page 13 of the order.

      15            A.   Okay.

      16            Q.   Do you see in the far left column that it's a

      17       metric average of calls answered in less than 90

      18       seconds?

      19            A.   Yes.

      20            Q.   And in the far right-hand column is the goal

      21       for that metric, right?

      22            A.   Yes.

      23            Q.   The plan you agreed to shows that the goal for

      24       this metric is that 80 percent of the calls should be

      25       answered within 90 seconds, correct?
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       1            A.   I didn't agree to the measurement, I agreed to

       2       the report.  And the answer is no, I did not agree to

       3       that metric.

       4            Q.   So you reviewed this report and you never

       5       indicated that this was an improper metric, did you,

       6       when you reviewed -- you had this report prior to you

       7       agreeing to the monitoring plan, did you not?

       8            A.   I'm not sure that I did, but we agreed to call

       9       center metrics, but I don't recall having this report in

      10       my hand prior to the point in time that we agreed that

      11       there would be reporting on call center performance.

      12            Q.   Let's look back at Exhibit 315.  It's the

      13       e-mail from me to Charlie Beck dated April 6, 2010.

      14            A.   We're going back to 315?

      15            Q.   Yes.

      16            A.   Okay.

      17            Q.   Look at Exhibit B to this report that you had.

      18            A.   D as in dog?

      19            Q.   B as in boy.  Do you see that same metric,

      20       calls answered in less than 90 seconds.  The standard

      21       goal is at least 80 percent of the calls would be

      22       answered in less than 90 seconds?

      23            A.   Yes.

      24            Q.   So you had this metric before you agreed to

      25       the Phase II Monitoring Plan, did you not?
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       1            A.   Well, sure.  Yes, I agree now.  I see it is

       2       here, but I did not recall that it was there.  But, once

       3       again, what we agreed to with Jack Lihvarcik was that we

       4       would use the metrics that you use to run your business.

       5       And whatever you were to use to run your business was

       6       what we were going to accept in terms of oversight.

       7                 And I would also add to that that when the

       8       order was issued following the rate case, the war

       9       between Aqua and Public Counsel stopped.  We were being

      10       supportive as much as we could to try to assist the

      11       company in getting the job done.  Our goal was the same

      12       as yours, happy customers.  And it was not our goal to

      13       run your business, to tell you what things were

      14       important to look at.  Our opportunity there was to work

      15       together to try to make sure that the things that you

      16       used to run the business were the things that we looked

      17       at in gauging whether or not customers were happy and

      18       receiving good service, because that was our combined

      19       goal.  And so we stopped criticizing your work the day

      20       the rate case ended.

      21            Q.   But now you are criticizing the metric,

      22       correct?  You're saying that this is not good service;

      23       this metric is not good?

      24            A.   When you filed the PAA and asked for increased

      25       rates, the well was poisoned, and the combat started
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       1       once again.

       2            Q.   So it's a war to you, it's a battle?

       3            A.   What?

       4            Q.   It's a battle to you?  Is that what this is

       5       all about?

       6            A.   I think it was pitched battle back in the last

       7       rate case, and it's getting very close now.

       8            Q.   Let's turn to Page 29 of your testimony.  On

       9       Lines 4 through 6 in reference to the quality of service

      10       monitoring reports that were part of the Phase II

      11       Monitoring Plan, you claim that Aqua -- excuse me.  You

      12       claim that OPC has been furnished voluminous data that

      13       is irrelevant to the issue of satisfactory customer

      14       service.

      15            A.   That's what the testimony says.

      16            Q.   And you just testified that the reports that

      17       Aqua provided to the Commission were filed in accordance

      18       with a plan that OPC and AUF agreed to, correct?

      19            A.   Yes.

      20            Q.   And now you are testifying that those reports

      21       are irrelevant to customer service?

      22            A.   What my testimony says is that we were

      23       referring to a 193-page document.  Four pages deal with

      24       customer service out of 193, and those four pages are

      25       simply graphs that are not really meaningful.  I
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       1       expected, and I think Charlie Beck expected that we

       2       would receive a lot more good solid analysis that every

       3       Commissioner here knows would be required if you are

       4       going to run a business successfully by analyzing your

       5       performance and doing something about it.  We got four

       6       pages of meaningless data along with 189 pages of

       7       worthless data in terms of customer service issues.

       8            Q.   Why would you say that data and reports that

       9       you agreed to to monitor customer service are now

      10       irrelevant?  I'm struggling with that, Mr. Poucher.

      11            A.   We agreed to use the reports that you use to

      12       run your business.  You, Aqua, uses to run its business

      13       on a day-to-day basis to evaluate its problems, to

      14       identify needed changes, to track those changes and

      15       monitor your performance.  That's how good businesses

      16       are run.  We had no idea that there was so little data

      17       available from Aqua as to how to operate their business.

      18       If that's it, then I certainly am justified in being

      19       critical.

      20            Q.   That is your prerogative certainly.  Let's

      21       turn to Page 28, Lines 20 through 22.  You state, and I

      22       quote, "The data provided by the company contains no

      23       historical tracking that OPC requested in its initial

      24       meeting to track improved operating performance over an

      25       extended period of time."  Is that an accurate quote of
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       1       your testimony?

       2            A.   That's what the testimony says.

       3            Q.   Have you reviewed the quality of service

       4       monitoring reports that Aqua provided during the course

       5       of the Phase II monitoring?

       6            A.   You mean the monthly reports?

       7            Q.   That and the other reports that we provided to

       8       you.

       9            A.   Yes.

      10            Q.   Have you reviewed each one of those reports

      11       and each one of those documents that we provided to you?

      12            A.   I believe that I probably looked at them.  I

      13       don't recall those specific documents.  I can't tell you

      14       what was in them.

      15            Q.   The first report was provided to you on

      16       July of 2010, correct?

      17            A.   As I said, I don't recall the report.  If you

      18       want to show it to me, I will be glad to talk about it.

      19            Q.   Let's refresh your memory.  Look at Exhibit

      20       Number 316.

      21            A.   Okay.

      22            Q.   It's a letter from me to the Clerk including

      23       Aqua's first Phase II monitoring.

      24            A.   Do you have a page number?

      25            Q.   It's Page 1.  This is a cover letter from me
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       1       to the Clerk of the Florida Public Service Commission

       2       covering the initial monitoring reports.  You are copied

       3       on that letter, correct?

       4            A.   Yes.

       5            Q.   Can you read Item Number 4 that was included

       6       in this report?

       7            A.   Did I?

       8            Q.   Could you read it for the record?

       9            A.   Do you have a page number?

      10            Q.   It is Item Number 4, Paragraph Number 4 on the

      11       first page.

      12            A.   Call center monitoring statistics, historical

      13       data report.

      14            Q.   You would agree, would you not, that this

      15       first report that you were provided in July of 2010

      16       contained historical information so that you could track

      17       performance over a longer period of time?

      18            A.   Well, not having recalled the data, I would

      19       like to look at the chart.  Can you tell me which page

      20       it is?

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. May, we said that we

      22       were going to stop today at about 5:00 o'clock.  I think

      23       this is a good time.  Mr. Poucher can actually take this

      24       home with him so he can familiarize himself so you can

      25       ask specific questions on this report.  And we will
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       1       reconvene tomorrow morning at 9:30.

       2                 If there is any questions or concerns?  Ms.

       3       Christensen.

       4                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I just have one concern.  We

       5       were hoping to take Ms. Dismukes tomorrow.  I don't know

       6       if it will be possible to roll Mr. Poucher until after

       7       Ms. Dismukes, or to take him up again with his rebuttal

       8       testimony in that order and just do the direct and

       9       rebuttal together.  That would be my suggestion, and

      10       then we don't have to pull him up multiple times.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I would imagine, because of

      12       the volume of stuff that was put in front of us, that

      13       Mr. May has quite a few questions on the direct.

      14                 MR. MAY:  I should be able to finish him up

      15       pretty soon tomorrow, probably another hour, hour and a

      16       half.

      17                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, I mean, I would hope

      18       so, but I still think we have got four DEP witnesses and

      19       Commissioner Mariano that are scheduled to go tomorrow,

      20       and I think that could create an issue.  I mean, I would

      21       prefer if we could just put Mr. Poucher on pause and get

      22       Ms. Dismukes onto the record in the interim time and

      23       just restart his testimony on the 7th.  He's in town and

      24       available to come back then.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, I would hope that we
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       1       can get it all done tomorrow, because it sounds like the

       2       time-certain witnesses we have, that staff has are not

       3       going to be that long.

       4                 MS. CHRISTENSEN:  And I would agree with you.

       5       I don't believe the DEP witnesses will take very long

       6       whatsoever, and I don't believe Mr. Mariano should take

       7       that long.  I'm just not sure how long Ms. Dismukes will

       8       take, and that's my concern.  But I'm certainly willing

       9       to -- you know, we certainly go in order if that's the

      10       Chair's wish.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.  I think there is quite

      12       bit of data here, and I guess, Mr. Poucher, you can

      13       assume that these Exhibits 314 through 324 you are going

      14       to be asked questions on, so you may want to take some

      15       time to familiarize yourself with that stuff.

      16                 Is there anything else to come before us?

      17                 MR. MAY:  No, sir.

      18                 MR. CURTIN:  Chairman, I have a similar issue

      19       with Mr. Harpin, Mr. Shawn Harpin who has been here all

      20       week.  I was expecting that we would at least get to him

      21       before the end of this week.  He may not be here next

      22       week, but we will see how maybe it goes tomorrow, and we

      23       could address that.  I just wanted to bring that to the

      24       attention of the Commission.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Anything else?
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       1                 All right.  Seeing none, we will be adjourned

       2       and we will reconvene tomorrow morning at 9:30.

       3                 (The hearing adjourned at 5:06 p.m.)

       4                 (Transcript continues in sequence with

       5       Volume 5.)
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